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1Social HouSing
& EHC’s History in briEf

Social housing was  
developed to address poverty  
that had arisen as a result of war 
conditions.

1920’s

1993
Social housing gained prominence 
as a way of addressing the country‘s 
current housing crisis. The catalyst 
was the Seven Buildings Projects in 
Johannesburg in which tenants of 
seven inner city buildings offered 
to buy the units from the landlords. 
A debate was set in motion which 
resulted in the institutional subsidy 
mechanism.

Introduction of the first two 
funding applications from Seven 
Buildings Project and Victoria 
Mxenge Association, a self-help 
project in the Western Cape.

1995

President Nelson Mandela 
convened a Presidential Job  
Summit to address the pressing  
issues of joblessness, hunger, 
poverty, skills etc. This summit 
agreed on a number of interven-
tions in the economy and in general, 
one of which being that our people 
need housing. 

1998

Emalahleni Housing company (EHc) 
was registered as a non-profit company 
and as a social housing institution 
established with the aim of providing 
rental or co-operative housing options 
for low  to medium income households, 
on an affordable basis, ensuring quality 
and maximum benefits for residents and 
managing stock over the long term.

2002

The Social Housing Regulatory autho
rity (SHRa) was created in terms of the 
Social Housing Act No.16 of 2008, and 
is the custodian of Social Housing in 
South Africa.

2008

EHc attains it’s first annual full 
accreditation with SHRA.

2012

EHc attains full 5 year accreditation
with SHRA.

2017

EHc manages 1 349 social housing 
units.

To daTE

Pilot Projects were started in Emahla-
leni, Johannesburg and Ethekwini for 
the delivery of 5 000 units each.
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this report is prepared in accordance with the internation
al integrated report framework. it endeavours to provide 
our stakeholders with a concise insight on how our strategy, 
governance, performance (our achievements and disappoint
ments) create value in the communities we operate.

this report provides material information relating to our strat
egy, business model, stakeholder interests and challenges 
being faced which pose a risk to our operations and any ma
terial events after the reporting period to the approval date of 
this report have been included.

this report covers the primary activities of the organisation 
and its subsidiary (Likhaya Community Development) dealing 
with corporate social responsibility.

Financial and non-financial performance have been included 
and challenges and risks which have a significant influence 
on our ability to create value have been outlined.

this report is primarily addressed to our key stakeholders 
including tenants, our staff, the social Housing regulatory 
Authority and society as a whole and the contents of this 
report are broadly comparable with those of the 2017 inte
grated report.

Approval by the Board
the board acknowledges its responsibility of ensuring the 
integrity of this integrated report, which in the board’s view 
addresses all the issues that are material to the organisation’s 
performance. this report was approved by the board of Direc
tors of Emalahleni Housing Company on 15 november 2018.
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The oak fought the wind and was 
broken, the willow bent when it must 

and survived.
- Robert Jordan, The Fires of Heaven
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Emalahleni Housing Company is pushing ahead with the 
national strategy of providing rental housing for low to me
dium income households on an affordable basis by pursu
ing a financially stable organisation which is able to deliver 
on its mandate in the long run, and is economically, socially 
and environmentally sustainable.

to ensure that as a stakeholder you are able to correctly 
understand our activities. A decision was taken last year to 
move towards integrated reporting where a holistic view of 
our business, its operations, financial information and our 
contributions to the community is linked and explanations 
are provided accordingly.

it is important not only to look back at our performance 
but to look forward and reflect on how we are positioning 
our business to ensure that it delivers on its mandate.

this integrated report seeks and intends to ensure that its 
content serves as a communication tool that clearly con
veys the organisation’s activities to create value.

in our 2016/2017 integrated report, we highlighted our focus 
areas in 2017/2018 and this report intends to report on that.

in future, we will continue to make improvements to this 
report so as to continuously add relevant information, make 
it even easier to understand, while taking into account the 
opinions of the stakeholders regarding this report.

We encourage our stakeholders to read this report and to 
share any feedback.

november 2018

6To ouR stAKEHoLDErs
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on and about the year 2000, the concept of social 
housing was introduced. A revised social housing 
policy was introduced in 2008 and pursuant to 
the new social housing policy, the social Housing 
regulatory Authority (sHrA) was established by 
the national Department of Human settlements 
(nDHs).

In South Africa, social housing is defined as a rent
al or cooperative housing option for low income 
persons at a level of scale and a built form which 
requires institutionalised management and which is 
provided by accredited social housing institutions or 

in accredited social housing projects in designated 
restructuring zones.

social housing primarily covers the rental tenure 
option and excludes immediate individual owner
ship by the residents. the targeted market for social 
housing is the low to middle income households 
who have challenges accessing the limited num
ber of well located, affordable rental opportunities 
provided by the formal market. the low to middle 
income households, are broadly defined as house
hold income in a range of R1 500 to R15 000, with 
the income classification as follows:

WHaT iS Social HouSing  
AnD oUr PHiLosoPHy

the main reason for coming up with social housing 
is to promote restructuring and social integration, 
balanced with the intention of achieving deep, 
down market reach and balanced communities in 
socioeconomic terms.

social housing contributes to urban regeneration 
and to urban efficiency in that with good location, 
integration and viability, it contributes to social inte
gration, social stabilisation and crime reduction.

social housing is meant to be delivered primari
ly through accredited social housing institutions. 
there are three main categories of social hous
ing institutions which can be accredited being 
non-profit organisations, municipal entities and 
housing cooperatives. A social housing institu

tion accreditation mechanism was established to 
regulate and provide compliance criteria for social 
housing institutions to ensure that their operational 
viability is safeguarded and will provide a measure 
of comfort to any financial institution from which 
the social housing institution may wish to borrow 
for project development.

it is against this background that Emalahleni Hous
ing Company was incorporated in 2002 as a social 
housing institution. It is a non-profit company, duly 
incorporated and registered in terms of the com
pany laws of the republic of south Africa. it has full 
accreditation and it is regulated by sHrA. Emalahle
ni Housing Company does not have any powers or 
mandate to dispose any of its social housing units, 
unless permitted by sHrA.
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incoME BandS
incoME 
SPREad

REnT 
QuoTE

Min  
REnTal

MaX  
REnTalloWER afTER 

TaX
uPPER afTER 

TaX

1 R 1 500 R1 500 R 3 500 R 3 500 10% 25% R375 R875

2 R 3 501 R3 501 R 5 500 R 5 500 20% 27% R945 R1 485

3 R 5 501 R5 501 R 7 700 R 6 314 20% 32% R1 760 R2 464

4 R 7 701 R6 315 R11 300 R 9 266 20% 35% R2 695 R3 955

5 R11 301 R9 267 R15 000 R12 300 30% 37% R4 181 R5 500



Emalahleni Housing Company manages the following social housing properties:

PRoPERTiES nuMBER of uniTS

Uthingo Park 1 205

Lesedi Court 1 & 2 104

Panorama Heights 20

Weavers Nest 20
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The type of units at these properties are as follows:
 ■ 1 bedroom units
 ■  2 bedroom units which are either free standing, 

semi-detached or walk-ups
 ■ 3 bedroom units

Since its incorporation Emalahleni Housing Com-
pany has operated its business through the follow-
ing 8 principles:

 ■ Diversity and mutual respect
 ■ Dignity and fairness
 ■  Continuous, open and honest communication
 ■  Transparency in transacting our business
 ■  Accessibility and responsiveness
 ■ Accountability
 ■ Professionalism
 ■ Integrity
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Panorama Heights
We have a total of 20 units comprising of 1 and 2 bedroom units, 

with a garage for each unit housing one vehicle.

Lesedi Court 1 and 2
We have a total of 104 units, comprising of 1 and 2 bedroom units.

Uthingo Park
We have a total of 1 205 units, comprising of the following units: 

 ■  1 bedroom units 

 ■  2 bedroom units which are either free standing,  

semidetached or walkups

 ■ 3 bedroom units

We provide 24 hours security at our complexes. our Uthingo Park 

property utilises a biometric system for access to the property.

Weavers Nest
We have a total of 20 rooms with ensuite.
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We have over 1 300 tenants renting 
units from our properties and we 
offer the following products:
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Vision
To be a provincial leader in the social housing sector 

by establishing a diverse and competitive brand with-

in sustainable communities.

Mission
To build communities by providing sustainable quality 

housing and diversified products and services.

Strategy
We pursue our vision and mission through strategy 
which focuses on eight strategic objectives:

 ■  Adhere to all legislative and regulatory framework.

 ■  Adhere and maintain the highest level of good 
corporate governance.

 ■  Development and implementation of  robust prop-
erty and tenant management systems.

 ■  Ensuring financial stability and economic perfor-
mance of the organisation.

 ■  Ensuring stable and proficient human resource 
capacity.

 ■  Development and implementation of a property 
development strategy.

 ■  Development and implementation of a business 
plan for diversification of services and products.

 ■  The creation of quality living environments. 



ouR nUMbErs

where carried out compared to 6 
evictions in the previous financial year

0 EvicTionS

compared to last year’s figures of 
R7 997 115.00

R8 384 529
Service delivery expenditure of

6%
rental increase
below inflation
rate of 6.4%

compared to last year’s 

4% rental increase  
below inflation rate of 
6.53%

2.18%
vacancy rate
compared to

2.56%
last year’s

vacancy rate

R738 557.77
community development contributions 
(financial and non-financial) spent

compared to last year’s contributions of 
R573 316.56

91.01%

compared to last
year’s rate of

93.14%

Average rental 
collection rate of

12



WHo govERnS Us As at 28 February 2018
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Non-Executive 
Directors

Mr. Risimati lucas 
chauke

Chairperson of the board

▪ bsc. Quantity surveying 
(Hon) University of natal)

Joined the board on 
24 January 2008

Ms. Simangele Jacqueline  
Sekgobela

 independent nonexecutive 
director

▪ Msc (Economics) in Public  
 Policy, (University of Hull)

▪ b Com Honours Economics
(UnisA)

▪ b Com General, Economics and 
Commercial Law (Wits)

Joined the board on  
1 December 2017

Ms. Silvia nomvula 
Motloung

independent 
nonexecutive director
▪ bA (Vista University)

▪ Hons Literature (rand Afr. University)
▪ Post graduate in Public Manage
ment (regensys business school)

Joined the board on  
14 December 2012

Ms. caroline Busisiwe  
dlamini 

independent 
nonexecutive director

▪ b Com Degree  
(University of Pretoria)

Joined the board on  
14 December 2012

Mr. desmond Bongane 
Khoza

Deputy Chairperson –  
independent nonexecutive 

director

▪ LLb (University of Zululand)
▪ Diploma Public Administration 

(University of Zululand)

Joined the board on 
23 november 2011

Ms. Hazel nokuhle 
Zitha

independent nonexecutive director – 
seconded by the Department of Human 

settlements, Mpumalanga

▪ bachelor’s Degree in Pedagogics and 
sstD (University of Zululand)
▪ Masters in town and regional  

 Planning (University of natal)
▪ Diploma in Management of Local  
Economic Development (DELnEt)

Joined the board on 
1 March 2014
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Executive Directors

Mr. Mzimkulu gladstone Xaba
Chief Executive Officer

▪  Master’s in business 
Management (MbA),  

(regenesys business school)

▪  Degree in training 
and Development btD (HrD) 

(north West University)

▪  secondary teachers Diploma (stD) 
(Mgwenya College of Education)

Joined the board on 
23 november 2011

Ms. Zanele adelaide  
Shongwe

Chief Financial Officer

▪ national Diploma Cost and Man
agement Accounting  

(Vaal University of technology)

Joined the board on 
01 March 2014

Membership 
of Board 
Committees:
  Audit and Risk  

Committee

  Finance and Investment 
Committee

  Human Resource and  
Remuneration Committee

 Nominations Committee

 Technical Committee

As per principle 7 of King IV the governing body should 
comprise the approporiate balance of knowledge, skills, 
experience, diversity and independence.

In line with King IV our board composition is as follows:

Non-executives

Executives

Independence

gender diversity

Skills

75%

25%

75%

62.5%
37.5%

Composition of the Government body

FINANCE LEGAL

CONSTRUCTION TOWN PLANNING

Fighting corruption is 
not good governance. 

It’s selfdefense.
It’s patriotism. 

- Joe Biden Executive directors attend all 
board committees.

ECONOMICS
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Dear stakeholder
i am pleased to present to you 
our integrated report for the 
year ended 28 february 2018.

During the reporting period 
and to the day this report was 
approved, the organisation has 
faced significant challenges 
which i will explain below. What 
has not changed however, is the 
organisation’s ability to continue 
delivery on our strategy to build 
sustainable communities in line 
with Government’s priority of re
structuring south African society 
in order to address structural, eco
nomic, social and spatial dysfunc
tionalities, therefore contributing 
to Government’s vision of sustain
able human settlements.

We have delivered on this strategy 
in an environment that remains 
volatile and challenging. Emalahle
ni Housing Company, although 
challenged, remains resilient and 
was able to deliver a strong finan
cial position. We took on the chal
lenges that affects our industry 
and those affecting our organisa
tion specifically in an even stron
ger and more decisive manner.

before i proceed with key high
lights, i would like to thank the 
board for their contributions, 
Management and staff for their 
bravery and focus during these 
challenging times.

Financial 
performance 
overview
Emalahleni Housing Compa
ny, performed well and it is in 
a strong financial position. Our 

turnover was R45 268 641 com
pared to last year’s turnover of 
R41 736 854. We suffered a loss 
of r32 210 953. for a more com
prehensive fianancial overview 
i refer you the CEo’s and Cfo’s 
report on page 18 and 57 re
spectively.

Leadership and 
governance
As pledged last year, our focus was 
to move towards the application 
of King iV, and a report on how we 
have applied King iV to our busi
ness is detailed under our Gover
nance section on page 23.

Challenges Faced
Land Availability Agreement 
the land that Uthingo Park was 
built on remain the biggest 
challenge that threatens the 
existence of Emalahleni Housing 
Company. Uthingo Park is 
Emalahleni Housing Company’s 
catalyst project that consists of 
1 205 units. the Land Availability 
Agreement signed between 
the developer, Anchroprops and 
Emalahleni Local Municipality 
(ELM) has been the subject of 
litigation since 2009. the bone 
of contention was the intention 
by the developer to sell the units 
that have been funded by the 
national Department of Human 
settlements (nDHs). the nDHs 
has been steadfast in its position 
that it is illegal to sell the units that 
where funded solely for affordable 
rental. the promulgation of 
the social Housing Act in 2008 
has reinforced and streamlined 
the policy guidelines in law, in 
respect of disposal of rental stock. 

section 14(1) (i) of the Act clearly 
stipulates that: “social housing 
institutions must seek approval 
from the regulatory Authority 
for the sale of any pro perties in 
their ownership on  the basis 
that such sale will not endanger 
the security of tenure of existing 
residents meeting the conditions 
of their tenancy and that the 
grant component of the proceeds 
receipts from such sale will be 
used to provide social housing”.

social housing regulations further 
stipulates that a social housing 
institution must seek permission 
from the regulatory authority 
before disposing housing stock into 
the open market where it might 
cease to be social housing for low 
to medium income households 
as provided by the social Housing 
Act and disposing of social housing 
stock funded with public funds. 
(regulation 14 (1).

regulation 14 further provides 
that the regulatory Authority 
may not approve a disposal of 

15

Risimati Lucas Chauke
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had a serious impact. the bond 
market is weaker and there 
was a decrease in foreign direct 
investment leading to weaker 
economic growth. there have 
been many job losses. Ema
lahleni had a fair share of bruises 
as the result of the economic 
downturn, as one of the biggest 
steel factories and secondary 
industries closed down leaving 
thousands of people jobless. 
According to the recent Labour 
force surveyor the unemploy
ment rate is sitting at 27.7% the 
highest since 2003. the con
sumer spending and the outlook 
on the economy is not looking 
positive. these negative mac
roeconomic trends converged 
into a single biggest challenge in 
the social housing sector. 

Despite all these economic 
setbacks Emalahleni Housing 
Company has thrived and un
wavering in the storm. We have 
maintained the sHrA benchmark 
of a 2% vacancy level. in the last 
three years the vacancy levels 
have varied from 1% to 2%. this is 
an indication of the high demand 
for our services.

Emalahleni Housing Company 
has also maintained its market 
share to become the landlord of 
choice in Emalahleni. A number 
of rental properties in the city are 
experiencing a high vacancy level 
due to the economic downturn 
that impacted Emalahleni. Most 
of the residential properties ben
efitted through the construction 
of EsKoM Kusile Power station. 
As the project comes to a conclu
sion the downscaling of people 
began to hit hard on rentals.

social housing stock funded with 
public funds in the open market 
as contemplated in subregulation 
(1), unless after consultation with 
the municipality and other social 
housing institutions in the area 
concerned and it is satisfied on 
reasonable grounds that there is 
sufficient social housing in the 
area and there is no need to retain 
the relevant housing stock as 
social housing.

Emalahleni Housing Company 
is a social housing institution 
operating within the ambit of 
the social Housing Act and is 
duty bound to comply with the 
prescript of the law and within 
the social housing regulatory 
framework.

in 2016, the developer and the 
ELM took everyone by surprise 
including Emalahleni Housing 
Company by entering and sign
ing an out of court settlement 
agreement. As the most affect
ed party who has an obligation 
to public / government funding, 
Emalahleni Housing Company 
was left with no choice but ap
proach the High Court seeking 
relief in the form of setting aside 
the settlement agreement until 

the matter is ventilated in the 
court (since there is a case filed 
with High Court in 2009). 

by implication, if the matter is 
not challenged it means that the 
developer will be allowed to sell 
social housing units at a price 
solely determined by them and 
double benefit at the expense of 
tax payers. this will also deprive 
the Emalahleni community of the 
most needed service of affordable 
rental stock. 

Emalahleni Housing Company 
has lived up to the expectations 
of social housing development 
in the context of the broader 
housing development pro
gramme of Government. our 
service has clearly contributed 
to sustainable development, es
pecially when allocation, integra
tion, viability and sustainability 
are carefully considered.

the out of court settlement by 
both ELM and the developer was 
a setback and against the spirit of 
delivering social housing service 
in Emalahleni. by law ELM also 
has the responsibility to create 
the right infrastructure to facil
itate the development of social 
housing units. the macro objec
tives of promoting citizenship, 
democracy and good governance 
are contributed by social housing. 
Local authorities by implication 
have a key role to play as partners 
in social housing development. 

 ■  Macro-economic factors  
impacted on the business

the downgrading of south Africa 
by rating agencies sEP & Global 
rating and flitch to junk status 

Courage is not the 
absence of fear, 
but rather the 
judgement that 
something else is 
more important 
than fear  
- Ambrose Redmoon 
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Vision 2022
Last year was the end of our Vision 2017 and this year 
we embarked on Vision 2022. the main pillars of Vision 
2022 are building on the success and experienced that 
dates back 10 years. It is a five-year business plan that 
reflects developmental growth and focus on being the 
best social housing institution that provide highest 
standard of service.

Diversification growth strategy was conceptualised 
which should promote mixed development and 
growth beyond Emalahleni, ultimately to have a foot
print in the province. 

SHRA medium term target reflects that Mpumalanga 
province is short of 1 000 units. in light of the above 
the board took a decision to have a provincial footprint 
and explore opportunities in areas that are gazetted as 
restructuring zones in the province. Emalahleni Hous
ing Company is on course to achieve this objective. to 
this end 216 units have been approved by sHrA and 
construction work is set to commence in the second 
quarter of 2019.

As a social housing landlord a corporate social investment 
strategy, through our subsidiary Likhaya Community 
Development nPC, was approved with a view of building 
communities through a structured community frame
work. Much work has been done in this regard. A report 
to showcase the work done is outlined on page 43. 

building solid stakeholder relationships and building 
of the Emalahleni Housing Company brand is ongoing, 
and so much has been achieved in this regard. A report 
of the work done is outlined on page 39.

Going forward
our future plans are to establish a foot print in the 
province and other provinces where our services are 
needed and to finalise the litigation matter on the Land 
Availability Agreement.

in light of our need to expand, in 2016 Emalahleni 
Housing Company responded to a call for applications 
to enter into a partnership agreement with the City of 
Cape town for the development of affordable hous

ing. Emalahleni Housing Company was subse
quently nominated as one of the social housing 
institutions the City of Cape town would want 
to partner with. to this end Emalahleni Hous
ing Company was awarded a certificate of full 
partnership with City of Cape town’s transport 
and Urban Development Authority accrediting 
Emalahleni Housing Company to provide social 
housing services.

Appreciation
on behalf of the board, i would like to thank all 
our stakeholders who have supported us and 
who have demonstrated effective leadership this 
year.

Risimati lucas chauke
Chairperson of the Board

It’s your reaction to adversity, 
not adversity itself that 

determines how your life’s 
story will develop 

– Dieter F. Uchtdorf



 ■  Collection summary – bad 
debts recovered amounted to 
r464 654 with no evictions.

 ■  We had an increase in our an
nual turnover from R41 736 854 
to R45 268 641.

 ■  our community development 
contributions in partnership 
with our sponsors increased 
by 28.8% from the previous 
financial year. our commu
nity development subsidiary, 
Likhaya Community Develop
ment received the Commu
nity Ambassador Award 2017 
from Highveld Mall.

 ■  We will see our other subsid
iary, Limelight Property in
vestments, grow considerably 
in the new financial year as 
a result of intensive strategic 
planning that was undertaken 
during the reporting period.

our other achievements are 
detailed in other sections of this 
report.

Emanating from the Land Avail
ability Agreement challenges, land 

it is said that no successful entity 
is without challenges and this 
applies to Emalahleni Housing 
Company as well. Every organisa
tion goes through turbulence at 
some point in time, but it is how 
we deal with these challenges 
that determines our real success. 

the same is true for Emalahle
ni Housing Company, and i am 
pleased to report that our suc
cesses, as always, far outweigh our 
challenges and overall the 2018 
financial year was extremely suc
cessful in all areas of operations.

We have not failed to deliver on 
our mandate of “bridging the 
gap to a better life” and ensuring 
a smooth transition from home
lessness to permanent accom
modation for our people. We 
offer our tenants not only a well 
maintained physical environment, 
but a quality of life which provides 
for improvement in terms of per
sonal development through our 
affordable rentals and community 
development programmes.

We pride ourselves in conducting 
our business in a fair and transpa
rent manner which ensures our 
compliance to good corporate 
governance and all the legislative 
and regulatory requirements that 
the social housing sector demands.

We are also reviewing our iCt 
strategy with a view of develop
ing an integrated iCt system that 
is customer centered. We are 
reviving our investment strategy 
with a view to leverage opportu
nities in the sector and this will 
be achieved by partnering with 
reputable developers (equity 

partners) to fast track our growth 
trajectory. 

We will continuously improve 
service delivery, streamline and 
manage costs to benefit tenants 
and ensure that more poor peo
ple can access our complexes.

Although we had a deficit we 
were able to achieve the following 
under the reporting period:

 ■  Project feasibility grants to 
the value of R500 000.00 
were awarded by the social 
Housing regulatory Authority 
(sHrA) that will kickstart 3 
social housing projects, name
ly Eric Liberty, Allenby street 
and beatty Avenue resulting 
in a yield of 216 one and two 
bedroom social housing units.

 ■  in light of the challenges faced 
with submetering at Uthin
go Park, Emalahleni Housing 
Company signed a memoran
dum of understanding with 
Emalahleni Local Municipality 
and the organisation embarked 
on a project for the installation 
of tamper proof kiosk boxes at a 
total cost of R6 991 331.60.

 ■  Landscaping of our complex
es improved drastically as we 
endeavoured to ensure that 
our property is aesthetically 
pleasing to the eye which 
gives our tenants a sense of 
pride of the place that they 
call “home”.

 ■  the vacancy rate for the year 
was 2.18%

 ■  rentals were increased by 
only 6%. our rentals are still 
the lowest in the city due to 
the fact that rental adjust
ments are managed with our 
tenants in mind.

Mzimkulu Gladstone Xaba
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Persistence and resilience only come from having been given the chance to 
work through difficult problems. - Gever Tulley

Resilience

rmarked for more social housing 
units was disposed by Emalahleni 
Local Municipality without any 
consultations with Emalahleni 
Housing Company and this result-
ed into a deficit as presented in 
our financial statements.

We look forward to the 2018/2019 
financial year where much 
growth and further progress is 
anticipated. I am confident that 
we will also seize new opportu-
nities as they unfold and take 
Emalahleni Housing Company 
to new heights in the interests of 
our tenants, stakeholders and the 
Emalahleni community.

19

I would like to take this opportuni-
ty to thank you all for your con-
tinuous and unwavering support 
in assisting us to accomplish our 
goals. Emalahleni Housing Com-
pany continues to stand tall and 
proud as one of the most suc-
cessful social housing institutions 
in the country.

Mzimkulu gladstone Xaba
Chief Executive Officer



resilient
adjective
able to withstand or recover quickly from difficult conditions.

synonyms: strong, tough, hardy.
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Management is doing 
things right, leadership is 

doing the right things 
- Peter Drucker

Executive management
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HoW and WHERE 
WE oPErAtE

 ■ Human Resources

 ■ finance

 ■  governance, compliance, legal services 
and Risk Management

 ■ Marketing and communication

 ■ community development

01

02

03

04

EHc
Board

centralised
functions

Executive
Management

operations

EMALAHLENI HOUSING COMPANY

 

 ■ Maintenance Management

 ■ Property Management

 ■ Tenant Management

 ■ Rental Management
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HoW and WHERE 
WE oPErAtE

Ms. Zanele Adelaide 
Shongwe

Chief Financial Officer

 ■  National Diploma 
Cost and Manage-
ment Accounting 
(Vaal University of 
Technology)

Ms Rekayi Tsokodayi

Company Secretary

 ■  Baccalaures Legum 
(with distinction) (Uni-
versity of Pretoria)

 ■  Academic Honorary 
Colours LLB 4 - year 
curricula (University 
of Pretoria)

 ■  CIS Professional 
Post-Graduate 
Qualification: Com-
pany Secretarial and 
Governance Practise 
(CSSA)

 ■  Risk, Compliance 
and Governance 
Certificate (WITS)

Our Executive Management is comprised of:

Mr. Mzimkulu  
Gladstone Xaba

Chief Executive Officer

 ■  Master’s in Busi-
ness Management 
(MBA), (Regenesys 
Business School)

 ■  Bachelor’s Degree 
in Training and 
Development BTD 
(HRD) (North West 
University)

 ■  Secondary Teach-
ers Diploma (STD) 
(Mgwenya College 
of Education)

Ms Laya 
Prasheena Chetty

General Manager:  
Business and Communi-
ty Development

 ■  Bachelor of Business 
Administration (Cum 
Laude) (Regenesys 
Business School)

Mr Thabiso 
Motsoeneng

General Manager: 
Operations and Facilities

 ■  Certificate in Health 
and Safety (SAM-

TRAC) (NOSA)

 ■  Certificate in Project 
Management  
(Regenesys Business 
School

 ■  Certificate in Incident 
and Investigation 
(NOSA)

lesedi 
court

Panaroma
Heights

uthingo
Park
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Potential stakeholders 
usually rely upon governance 

elements prior to investing 
their time, talent and/or 

money  
– Robert E. Davis

ouR GoVErnAnCE

As a non-profit company we are not required to com-
ply with the extended accountability requirements as 
set out in Chapter 3 of Companies Act, 2008, except 
to the extent that our Memorandum of Incorporation 
provides otherwise.

We have chosen, in terms of section 34(2) of the 
Companies Act, 2008, to voluntarily comply with the 
provisions of Chapter 3 of the Companies Act with 
regards to transparency, accountability and integrity 
of companies in order to enhance our governance.

in our 2017/2018 integrated report, with regards to cor
porate governance, we undertook to focus on the ap
plication of the King iV Code of Corporate Governance 
and below is how the board is aligned with King iV.

King IV application:

Principle 1
Emalahleni Housing Company’s board is commit
ted to ethical and effective leadership. the board has 
approved and adopted the Conflict of Interest Policy 
which applies to all directors and employees in order 
to ensure that Emalahleni Housing Company main
tains the highest level of integrity and ethical conduct. 
Conflict of Interest management is incorporated in 
the board Charter. the board Charter documents, the 
board’s role, responsibilities and accountability includ
ing those relating to corporate governance.

the board continuously attends training to develop 
their competence to lead effectively.

Principle 2
the board is responsible for the governance of ethics 
of the organisation through its Human resources and 
remuneration Committee.

Principle 3
through its wholly owned subsidiary Likhaya Community 
Development (”Likhaya”), Emalahleni Housing Company 
is focused on enhancing the wellness of people in the 
communities it operates. Emalahleni Housing Company 
is committed to improving the wellbeing of societies in 
which it operates by hosting several community devel
opment projects which assist those in need. for more 



Board of Directors

on our community development 
activities we refer you to page 43.

Principle 4
Emalahleni Housing Company’s 
strategy planning session takes 
place annually where strategic 
objectives and goals are set and 
reviewed if necessary, the focus 
areas being growth, customer 
service, financial stability, client 
centricity and property develop
ment. Executive Management 
(EXCo) is then tasked by the 
board to execute the strategy as 
approved by the board.

Principle 5
through its Audit and risk Com
mittee the board is assisted to 

review the integrity of its inte
grated report. in our integrated 
report we strive to include all 
relevant information to enable 
stakeholders to make an assess
ment of Emalahleni Housing 
Company’s performance.

Principle 6
the board serves as the focal point 
and custodian of corporate gov
ernance in the organisation. the 
Board is supported by five Board 
committees which have dele
gated responsibility to assist it to 
fulfil specific functions. The Board 
Committees report to the board 
at every board meeting. the 
board Charter and board commit
tee’s terms of reference underpin 

the board’s responsibility for good 
corporate governance.

Principle 7
the board is assisted by the 
nominations Committee which 
considers the composition, bal
ance of skills, experience, diver
sity, independence and knowl
edge of the board to determine 
effectiveness of the board.

the nominations Committee 
was constituted in June 2017. the 
board comprises of a majority 
of nonexecutive directors’ and 
a balance between male and 
female directors. on our gender 
diversity we refer you to page 14. 
the nominations Committee is 
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appraisal the CEo, Chairperson and 
Company secretary’s performance 
was evaluated. 

the outcomes from the board 
appraisal is then used to inform 
the developmental requirements 
of the board, its committees and 
members. training is also pro
vided to Directors on identified 
topics through a training needs 
assessment biannually.

Principle 10
the appointment of Executive 
Management falls within the 
mandate of the CEo, in consul
tation with the board. roles and 
responsibilities of each executive 
manager is formally documented 
and evaluation of performance is 
done quarterly.

Principle 11
the board approved a risk 
Management framework and 

further tasked with directors ap
propriate succession planning.

Principle 8
Emalahleni Housing Company 
has approved a Delegation of 
Authority Policy. the board has 
established various board com
mittees in order to assist it to ef
fectively discharge its duties and 
also allows for balance of power 
since the distribution of authority 
between the Chairperson, board 
and board Committees does not 
lead to instances where individ
uals dominate decision making 
within governance structures 
or where undue dependency is 
caused.

Each board Committee has ap
proved terms of reference which 
sets out its purpose, composi
tion, functions and authority as 
determined by the board.
Emalahleni Housing Company 

governance framework includes 
the following committees: Audit 
and risk Committee, finance 
and investment Committee, 
Human resources and remu
neration Committee, technical 
Committee and the nomina
tions Committee.

Delegated authority always pro
motes independent judgement 
and effective discharge of duties 
while managing risks.

Principle 9
board performance appraisal is 
conducted every two (2) years 
through use of external con
sultants. A board performance 
appraisal was conducted at the 
beginning of the 2018 financial 
year. All outcomes and areas of 
improvement were formally noted 
in a report which was presented to 
the board at a board meeting held 
in June 2018. During the board 

Governance Structure
REgulAtOR shRA/MPuMAlANgA 

DEPARTMENT: HUMAN SETTLEMENTS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

LIKHAYA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT NPC lIMElIght (PtY) ltD

HR & RUMENERATION
COMMITTEE

AUDIT & RISK
COMMITTEE

FINANCE & 
INVESTMENT 
COMMITTEE

NOMINATION &
COMMITTEE

TECHNICAL
COMMITTEE

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

OPERATIONS CENTRALISED
FUNCTIONS

ouR GoVErnAnCE



Register of Directors’ Attendance

 Name
23 March  

2017
29 & 30 June 

2017
19 October 

2017
1 February 
2018 (SCM)

28 February 
2018

L.R Chauke

B.D Khoza

S.N Motloung

N.H Zitha

C.B Dlamini

*S.J Sekgobela

Z.A Shongwe

M.G Xaba

through its Audit and risk Com
mittee it is assisted to govern 
risk in a way which supports 
the organisational strategy. risk 
reports have become a standing 
agenda item on the Audit and 
risk Committee and board quar
terly meetings which reports 
address management of risk / 
emerging risks.

Principle 12
the board intends to oversee the 
governance of information tech
nology through the Audit and 
risk Committee that reviews the 
it governance process including 
information, security and disas
ter recovery plans.

Principle 13
the board is assisted by the Audit 
and risk committee to oversee 
the governance of compliance. 
Compliance management has 

been delegated to the Company 
secretary.

Principle 14
the board is assisted by the Hu
man resources and remuneration 
Committee in order to oversee the 
governance of all remuneration 
matters with the objective to en
sure that directors and employees 
are remunerated fairly, responsibly 
and transparently.

Principle 15
the Audit and risk Committee with 
the assistance of combined assur
ance forums and the outsourced 
internal audit function reviews 
Emalahleni Housing Company’s 
combined assurance approach.

the combined assurance model 
integrates activities of assurance 
providers, which include internal 
audit, external audit and other 

independent third party specialists. 
internal controls acts as enablers for 
delivering effective governance and 
demonstrating that adequate con
trols are in place and provides rea
sonable assurance from a control 
perspective that business is being 
operated consistently within:

 ■ set strategy
 ■ Agreed business objectives
 ■ Agreed policies of processes
 ■ Laws and regulations

Principle 16
there is regular engagement with 
stakeholders through various plat
forms and forums. there is an ap
proved stakeholder relationship 
Management Policy. A stakehold
er inclusive approach is important 
as the board understand the risk 
of reputation. our stakeholder 
relationship Management is done 
through our community develop
ment unit and the CEO’s office.

*Appointed 1 December 2017                   Absent                   Present                   Alternate Director
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If you think 
compliance  

is expensive try  
non-compliance. 

-Paul McNulty, Former US 
Deputy Attorney General

Conflict  
of Interest

In order to ensure proper transparency directors are 
required to declare any private interests that might 
affect the performance of their duties.

At the first meeting of each new financial year, directors 
are required to declare all relevant interests. At each and 
every board / Committee meeting directors are required 
to disclose the existence of an interest and all material 
facts that may give rise to an actual or possible conflict of 
interest, on all items to be discussed at that meeting.

if a board member declares an interest with regards to 
a matter to be discussed at a board/Committee meet
ing he/she shall be excused when the agenda item is 
discussed and will not have a vote on the matter.

Our approach on compliance
As indicated in our last integrated report we pledged 
to focus on compliance. the board has adopted a Com
pliance Policy and a shift from King iii to King iV.

in this report we have outlined how principles and 
practices of King iV have been applied on page 24 to 
achieve the outcomes of an ethical culture, good per
formance, effective control and legitimacy.

We have maintained regulatory compliance through 
quarterly reporting to the social Housing regulatory 
Authority (sHrA), the regulator for social housing.

Our approach to risk 
management 
the board recognises that risk management is a dy
namic process hence it adopted a robust risk manage
ment framework. risk management is recognised as an 
integral part of sound organisational management. the 
board has the ultimate responsibility for the governance 
of risk and sets the direction for how risk should be ap
proached and addressed.

the Audit and risk committee is responsible for the 
oversight of the total process of risk management. it 

ouR GoVErnAnCE

If you don’t invest in risk 
management, it doesn’t matter 

what business you’re in, it’s a 
risky business. - Gary Cohn 



provides guidance and monitors 
the risk management process. it 
ensures that appropriate systems 
are implemented to manage the 
identified risks, by measuring 
the risks in terms of impact and 
probability, together with proac
tively managing the mitigating 
action’s to ensure that the organ
isations assets and reputation are 
suitably protected.

the organisation’s risk manage
ment strategy deals with iden
tifying, assessing, monitoring, 
managing where possible, and 
mitigating all identified forms of 
risk across the organisation.

the organisations risk manage
ment processes are reviewed 
every two years or as required. 
Quarterly reports are submitted 
to the Audit and risk committee 
and the board, which reports 
focus on strategic risks progress 
with implementing corrective 
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policies and procedures and 
the effectiveness and com
pleteness of the internal con
trol environment.

 ■  oversees the risk manage
ment plan of the organisation.

 ■  oversees the performance 
assessment of internal audit.

 ■  reviews the effectiveness and 
quality of the audit process.

 ■  reviews the effectiveness of 
the systems for monitoring 
compliance with the law and 
regulations.

Human Resources and 
Remuneration Committee
Currently chaired by Ms. silvia 
nomvula Motloung.

Mandate:
 ■  reviews strategic human 

resources practises.
 ■  reviews and recommends 

overall remuneration strate
gies, policies and practices of 
the organisation and mea
sures and assesses executive 
management performance.

 ■  Ensures key management 
personnel remuneration.

 ■  Monitors, reviews and makes 
recommendations regarding 
remuneration of nonexecu
tive directors and executive 
directors.

actions for any new and emerg
ing risks, and risk developments 
including incidents.

Ethical indicators
As indicated in our 2016/2017 
integrated report we pledged 
to implement mechanisms to 
combat theft, fraud and other 
unethical practises.

the organisation has adopted 
and is in the process of imple
menting anticorruption practis
es. in this regard a Whistleblow
ing Policy was approved by the 
board. Employees are encour
aged to report all incidents of 
suspicious fraud, theft or com
plaints while protected from 
harassment and victimisation.

Employees are further discour
aged from accepting any gifts 
and favours from suppliers.

Board effectiveness
the board provides leadership 
and strategic guidance. the 
board is led by the Chairperson 
Mr. r.L. Chauke and is assisted 
by five Board committees to 
discharge its duties and respon
sibilities. Each board commit
tee has formal written terms of 
reference which are reviewed 
annually.

Audit and Risk Committee
Currently chaired by Ms. simangele 
Jacqueline sekgobela.

Mandate:
 ■  oversees integrated reporting 

of the organisation’s current 

Rekayi Tsokodayi



A decision was further taken 
that the Board attends training 
twice in a year on topics which 
they would have identified 
through a training needs survey 
conducted at the beginning of 
each financial year.

Non-executive 
director 
remuneration
In the spirit of our values of 
transparency in transacting 
our business, and continuous, 
open and honest communica-
tion, we have taken a decision 
to disclose our non-executive 
director’s fees. Non-executive 
director remuneration for the 
year ending 28 February 2018 is 
as per table below.

Governance Focus 
Areas 2018/19

 ■  Governance of Information 
Technology

 ■  Robust risk management 
processes

Finance and Investment 
Committee

Currently chaired by  
Ms. Caroline Busisiwe Dlamini.
Mandate:

 ■  Reviews the organisations 
budget.

 ■  Reviews and approves any 
special expenditure.

 ■  Monitors the organisation’s 
compliance with its finance 
policies.

 ■  Assists the Board in consider-
ing investment opportunities.

 ■  Assists the Board to approve 
acquisitions, disposals and 
capital expenditure.

 ■  Reviews investment strategy 
of the organisation in terms 
of the broad objectives to be 
met and areas of focus for 
investments and acquisitions.

Technical Committee
Currently chaired by  
Mr. Bongane Desmond Khoza.
Mandate:

 ■  Considers and reviews the 
projects the organisation is 
planning or currently involved 
in and provides technical ad-
vice and guidance.

 ■  Monitors compliance with 
the organisation’s property 
maintenance and property 
development policies as well 
as relevant legislation with 
regards to projects.

 ■  Ensures that technical due 
dili gence has been carried 
out in connection with major 
projects.

 ■  Gives advice on risk manage-
ment with regards to major 
projects.

 ■  Reviews projects in the pipe-
line.

Nominations Committee
Currently chaired by Mr. Risimati  
Lucas Chauke.
Mandate:

 ■  Ensures the establishment 
of a formal process for the 
appointment of directors.

 ■  Oversees the development 
of an induction program for 
new directors.

 ■  Oversees the development 
and implementation of con-
tinued professional develop-
ment programs for directors.

 ■  Ensures formal succession 
plan for the Board, CEO and 
Senior Management appoint-
ments.

Board training and 
development
We continuously ensure that our 
Board is developed and trained 
to ensure performance. 

During the reporting period the 
Board attended a Risk Manage-
ment workshop.

nonEXEcuTivE  
diREcToRS BoaRd fEES coMMiTTEE fEES

RL Chauke R33 513.50 R138 363.50

DB Khoza R23 459.48 R90 071.52

SN Motloung R23 459.48 R105 336.52

CB Dlamini R29 324.35 R79 306.65

SJ Sekgobela R11 729.74 R10 739.26

HN Zitha R0 R0

ToTal R121 486.55 R423 817.45
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Resources and inputs

RESouRcES inPuTS

financial capital
Our financial resources are cash informed from 
rentals, and retained surplus.

 ■ Rental collected
 ■ Retained surplus

Manufactured capital
Manufactured resources comprise of our social 
housing units. These manufactured resources 
are critical to accessing financial resources, they 
generate income through rentals and they are key 
to our ability to secure funding for future develop-
ments.

 ■ 4 operational complexes
 ■ Over 1300 tenants
 ■ 1 349 units

Human capital
The calibre, experience and resilience of our peo-
ple makes us one of the most successful social 
housing institutions in the province and the coun-
try. Our people help us maintain full accreditation 
by the regulator, SHRA.
Our culture is driven by our values as outlined on 
page 9.

 ■ 43 employees
 ■ 5 Exco members
 ■ 9 Directors

Social and Relationship capital
Social and relationship resources refer to the 
relationship we have with tenants, communities, 
Government, and suppliers. These stakeholders 
are central to the ongoing success of our  
business.

 ■ Over 1 300 tenants
 ■ Full accreditation by the regulator 
 ■  Through our wholly owned subsidiary Likhaya 

Community Development NPC, we push our 
corporate social responsibility activities

 ■  Assisted more than 1000 beneficiaries in the 
community

 ■ 0 Evictions 
 ■ Employee wellness programs

natural capital
Natural resources are constrained in the commu-
nity we operate in.

 ■ Land
 ■ Energy 
 ■ Water 

intellectual capital
Intellectual resources refer to intellectual assets 
such as reputation and strategic partnerships.

 ■ Skills and experience of our staff
 ■ Continuous training of both staff and Board
 ■ Experienced Directors and Exco members
 ■ Policies and standards
 ■ Improved responses to changing tenants needs

ouR valuE cREaTion 
bUsinEss MoDEL
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What we do:

Source
Through our internal and external resources, we source best opportunities in the re-
structured designated areas to invest in and develop more social housing units.

assess
We evaluate identified opportunities and invest with the purpose of promoting re-
structuring and social integration in line with Government’s vision of sustainable hu-
man settlements.

Secure Investment decisions are then approved and we secure the opportunity.

funding
Investment opportunities are lodged with the Regulator to ensure disbursement of 
restructuring capital grants and feasibility assessment of the project by the Regulator.

develop We develop properties to meet tenant’s needs in line with approved income bands.

Enhance
Through our robust property management we ensure that our properties are well 
looked after.

Recycle capital Retained surplus is invested into more social housing projects.

All our activities are supported by strong governance and ethics. Emalahleni Housing Company is commit-
ted to the highest standards of governance, ethics and integrity.

Our activities are further under pinned and supported by shared human resources, finance, governance, 
compliance, marketing and communication and community development services.
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Outputs and outcomes

ouTPuTS ouTcoMES

financial
 ■ Operating profit of the year R16 347 718
 ■ turnover of R45 268 641

 ■ total assets R249 758 287

Manufactured
 ■ Rental income R38 225 050
 ■ 2.18 % vacancy rate
 ■ 93.14% collection rate

 ■  Generate cash flows from rental income to 
fund developments

 ■ Clean and habitable complexes 

Human
 ■ Employee turnover of 4.6%
 ■ Job profiles linked to KPI’s
 ■ Employee wellness initiatives

 ■ Motivated employees to deliver strategy.
 ■ Skills retention
 ■ Alignment to organisations values
 ■ Ongoing skills development

Social and Relationship 
 ■  Several platforms for stakeholder feedback 

such as Facebook, website, twitter and an 
e-mail address dedicated to complaints.

 ■  Corporate social investment spend R738 557.77 
being financial and non-financial

 ■ 1000 beneficiaries assisted
 ■ Awards in Community Development

 ■ Brand reinforcement
 ■ Collaborative business relationships
 ■ Delivery of appropriate solutions to our tenants
 ■ Constructive interaction with all stakeholders
 ■  2% corporate social responsibility donations by 

suppliers
 ■  Long term value for our community through 

community development initiatives

natural
 ■ Jojo tanks installed at some of our complexes

 ■  Gutters and 5000 litres JoJo tanks installed at 
Panorama Heights and Lesedi 1 & 2 complex-
es, to collect rain water. This water is used for 
watering plants and flowers. It’s an emergency 
stop gap for flushing toilets if there’s no tap 
water, etc

intellectual
 ■ Well managed and maintained properties.
 ■  Well managed tenant relationships through 

lease agreements.
 ■ High occupancy rate.
 ■  Secure access to complexes through IT  

systems

 ■  Satisfied customers and low vacancy rate.
 ■  Automation through technology and effective 

controls at our complexes

ouR valuE cREaTion 
bUsinEss MoDEL
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How we deliver service  
to our tenants
In the year under review the following activities were 
undertaken in our endeavours to deliver quality ser-
vice to our tenants.

 ■ 20year maintenance plan approved.

 ■ 121 electrical kiosks installed at Uthingo Park. 

 ■ building of drivethrough in Panorama Heights.

 ■ renovation of unit E Panorama Heights. 

 ■ External painting of Panorama Heights.

 ■ 3 beatty street  external painting.

 ■ 3 beatty street  walkway constructed.

 ■  21 beatty street  internal painting and installation of 
ceramic tiles.

 ■ burglar bars and security doors installed for 107 units.

 ■  Vinyl tiles and carpet tiles were replaced with  
ceramic tiles in 102 of our 2 and 3bedroom free 
standing units to enhance our units.

 ■ 281 tenants were allocated in reporting the year.

 ■ 97 units were renovated in the reporting year.

Credit Control Team

Your most unhappy customers 
are your greatest source 

 of learning.
 - Bill Gates

Thabiso Motsoeneng
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Customer service should not be a department. It should be
the entire company. -Tony Hsieh

Corporate Services Team

Customer service should not be a department. It should be
the entire company. - Tony Hsieh
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Service Delivery Focus Areas 
2018/19 

 ■ Installation of gable roof tiles. 
 ■  Migration from the old BEC-23 electrical me-

ters to BEC-44 electrical smart meters.
 ■  Installation of 25mm road paving at our  

Uthingo Property Block 22.
 ■  Building of maintenance office and proper 

storage for equipment and materials.

Maintenance Team

Service delivery focus area 
deliveries 2017/18

 ■  turnaround time has been reduced to 72 hours 
for normal defects and immediate or within 12 
hours for emergency defects.

 ■  the biometric system capacity has been upgrad
ed from 3 000 to 10 000 users.

 ■  tenant survey on service delivery has been 
conducted and the department is improving 
and working on all shortcomings pointed out by 
tenants.

 ■  Debt collection has been internalised and the 
collected amount for the year is r464 654 com
pared to last year’s amount of r137 393.

 ■  We embarked on a grey water project were 
gutters and 5 000 litre JoJo tanks were installed 
at Panorama Heights and Lesedi Courts 1 & 2 to 
collect rain water. the water is used for watering 
plants and flowers, and for flushing of toilets if 
there’s no tap water, etc. 

Put yourself in their shoes. 
- Jesse Harrison, CEO 

Employee Justice Legal Team

SERvicE DELiVEry



39

resilience

and ouR BRand
stAKEHoLDErs



40STaKEHoldERS  
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How we promote our brand 
and Stakeholder Management
Emalahleni Housing Company looks at branding as a 
value added aspect of selling our product and services 
to our relevant stakeholders. The Emalahleni Hous-
ing Company brand is used to communicate with 
our staff, partners and the community in which we 
operate. During the reporting period we fostered our 
identity through the following activities:

Website
the Emalahleni Housing Company website is used to 
keep our stakeholders and tenants informed of various 
activities and events that take place at Emalahleni Hous
ing Company. Visit www.ech.co.za to view our state 
of the art web page. Viewers can click through to our 
subsidiary company’s website, i.e. Likhaya Community 
Development to view how Emalahleni Housing Com
pany is enriching the lives of the less fortunate in our 
community.

Social network platforms
social media platforms are the fastest growing market
ing and brand exposure methods for the 20th century. 
the Emalahleni Housing Company facebook page and 
twitter account has grown to be the “go to place” for our 
tenants and stakeholders. Emalahleni Housing Com
pany also has a dedicated email address where com
plaints, concerns and enquiries are attended to. 

Emalahleni Housing Company

#emalahlenihc

admin@ehco.co.za

Susan Esterhuizen
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Potential stakeholders 
usually rely upon governance 

elements prior to investing 
their time, talent and/or 
money. -Robert E. Davis 

Newsletters

EHC continues to circulate 
our “EHC Community News” 
newsletter twice a year. The 
newsletter provides a summa-
ry of activities, a message from 
the CEO and information on 
projects in the pipeline. EHC 
uses the newsletter as a place 

to “brag” about our accom-
plishments and we are proud 
to do so.

In the 2017/2018 integrated 
report we aimed to expand our 
brand and we did achieve our 
goals by:

 ■  Promoting the EHC brand in 
local newspapers: Witbank 

News, Coal City and Get It 
magazine;

 ■  Our Facebook page hit a fol-
lowing of 500 followers;

 ■  Interviews were held with 
EHC on Emalahleni FM; and

 ■  The EHC twitter account was 
launched.

A brand for a company is like a reputation for a person. You earn reputation by 
trying to do hard things well - Jeff Bezos
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strategic direction of Emalahleni 
Housing Company.

A stakeholder relations man
agement policy was developed 
during the reporting period the 
purpose of which is to foster a 
framework of relations based on 
principles of transparency, active 
listening, and equal treatment 
that favours the inclusion of 
stakeholders in business activities 
by means of an effective coordi
nation instrument that makes it 
possible to forge relations based 
on trust on an ongoing basis.

the policy makes provision for 
specific channels for dialogue 
with stakeholders to ensure ef
fective engagement and com
munication.

Company and supporting the 
achievement of its strategic ob
jectives. it is crucial that stake
holder relations is focused on the 
needs of stakeholders, which is 
why consultation plays such a 
vital role in obtaining stakeholder 
views and perceptions of their re
lationship with the organisation.

stakeholder engagement is 
about careful selection and 
engagement from the outset so 
that the views, needs and ideas 
of the stakeholders shape the 

STaKEHoldERS  
AnD oUr brAnD

AwardREcogniTion

Stakeholder 
relations 
management
Emalahleni Housing Company is 
best able to serve the large num
ber of stakeholders with which it 
interacts when it is well informed 
about the nature and needs of 
those stakeholders. stakehold
er management is conducted 
through a planned approach, 
coordinating interaction with 
the parties who have a vested 
interest in Emalahleni Housing 

Emalahleni Housing Company was recognised as the Community 
Ambassador for 2017 by Highveld Mall at an Awards Ceremony 
held on 27 February 2018. We received a floating trophy and a 
certificate.

Our Stakeholder Management and  
brand focus areas 2018/19

 ■  Expand on community development activities which provides an ideal opportunity to showcase 
Emalahleni Housing Company in various platforms in terms of brand recognition.

 ■  Further engage with publication houses and radio stations in order to expand public relations 
opportunities.

 ■  More regular engagements with stakeholders to ensure mutually beneficial collaborations and 
investments.

 ■  Expand the Emalahleni Housing Company stakeholder group by networking and marketing the 
services of the organisation in order to attract more stakeholder investment.

the keys to brand success are self-definition, transparency, 
authenticity and accountability. - Simon Mainwaring 
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Our approach to community 
development

“No act of kindness, no matter how small, is ever 
wasted” – Aesop. 

This is the Emalahleni Housing Company credo in 
terms of assisting, empowering and educating com-
munities. Our dedicated community development 
team of our subsidiary company, Likhaya Community 
Development” worked tirelessly to ensure that we in-
tervene and assist as many beneficiaries as possible 
with the funds that are dedicated to community de-
velopment by Emalahleni Housing Company; and the 
financial and non-financial donations received from 
our generous sponsors who have opened their hearts 
and partnered with us on this incredible journey to 
creating sustainable communities. 

More than 1000 beneficiaries, including the elderly, 
the disabled, underprivileged school going children, 
victims of abuse, and orphaned children were as
sisted during the reporting period through various 
programmes that were hosted for the benefit of our 
communities.

Take a girl child To Work (25 May 2017)

the “take a Girl Child to Work Day” campaign was 
introduced to the south African business community 
on 08 May 2003 by Cell C, and is currently in it is 15th 
year. it is a respected movement that affords grade 10 
to 12 learners, from all walks of life, the chance to expe
rience a day in the workplace first-hand. For many, the 
day spent in the working world, shadowing top execu
tives and entrepreneurs opens up a world of hope and 
dreams. it inspires girls to work hard to achieve what 
they want to attain in life and contributes towards 
making their dreams tangible. 

Emalahleni Housing Company hosted 34 learners 
recruited from different schools as well as amongst 
our tenants within our residential complexes and 
staff members. they were given exposure in the 
fields of Finance, Human Resources, Administration, 
Marketing, information technology and Community 
Development. Community Development Team

Laya Prasheena  
Chetty
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What is growth for if not to 
help ordinary people thrive 

- Winne Byanyima Executive 
Director Oxfam International

Youth day (10 June 2017)

youth day commemorates the 
soweto Uprising of 16 June 1976. 
the uprisings tragically ended 
with hundreds of young people 
killed by the apartheid govern
ment when they protested 
against the imposition of Afri
kaans in schools as a medium of 
instruction. 

Emalahleni Housing Company 
commemorated youth Day by 
hosting a soccer tournament 
where 160 learners were recruit
ed from 8 primary schools across 
Emalahleni. the tournament was 
held at Lynnville stadium. Each 
school received a certificate of 
participation and the winners 
and runners up were awarded 
with trophies, medals, soccer 
balls and soccer playing kits.

Mandela day (18 July 2017)

Mandela Day is commemorated 
on 18 July every year in recogni
tion of Nelson Mandela’s birth
day. it was inspired by a call nel
son Mandela made, for the next 

generation to take on the burden 
of leadership in addressing the 
world’s social injustices when he 
said that “it is in your hands now”.  
it is more than a celebration of 
Madiba’s life and legacy. it is a 
global movement to honour his 
life’s work and act to change the 
world for the better. 

staff members at Emalahleni 
Housing Company were instru
mental in renovating the staff 
rooms and toilets at Kopanang 
secondary school by painting 
them. Groceries were also do
nated to siphosenkosi Disabled 
Centre and canned food was do
nated to 17 tenants of Emalahleni 
Housing Company.

Women’s Month (august 2017)

Women’s Day commemorates 
the famous 1956 march of 20,000 
women at the Union buildings 
in Pretoria. the women marched 
in protest against the pass laws, 
which required people desig
nated as “black” by the south 
African government to apply for 
a travel pass just for travel within 

south Africa. the purpose was to 
maintain segregation and control 
migrant labour, all part of the 
general apartheid policy of the 
time. Women of all ethnic groups 
were outraged and indignant 
about these travel restrictions 
as well as about apartheid in 
general. they petitioned the 
government to change these 
policies, stood silently in pro
test for half an hour outside the 
capital complex, and sang a song 
that included the nowfamous 
words, “you strike a women, you 
strike a rock!” Leaders of the 
movement included: Lilian Ngoyi, 
sophia Williams, rahima Moosa, 
and Helen Joseph. they brave
ly risked arrest to promote real 
change, and their efforts eventu
ally paid off.

Emalahleni Housing Company’s 
initiative for Women’s Month was 
centered on fundraising for san
itary towels for underprivileged 
primary and high school girls. A 
fun event was held on 11 August 
2017 entitled “Girls’ night out” 
where more than 100 guests 
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der to undergo lifesaving stem 
cell transplants.

Emalahleni Housing Company 
held an awareness campaign for 
a period of 9 weeks prior to sun
flower Day on 15 September 2018. 
this resulted in 34 blood dona
tions as compared to an average 
of 10 per day; 6 registrations for 
stem cell donations; and r10 500 
raised for the Sunflower Fund.

Heritage day  
(23 September 2017)

Heritage Day on 24 septem
ber recognises and celebrates 
the cultural wealth of our na
tion. south Africans celebrate 
the day by remembering the 
heritage of the many cultures 
that make up the population of 
south Africa. Various events are 
staged throughout the country 
to commemorate this day. in 

were in attendance. through 
the financial and non-financial 
contributions from guests and 
sponsors, we were able to assist 
209 primary and high school 
learners with sanitary towels for 
a period of 8 months. this was a 
phenomenal achievement.

Emalahleni Housing company 
Benefit Concert (26 August 2017)

the Emalahleni Housing Com
pany Benefit Concert was held 
with a view to raise funds for the 
purchase of wheelchairs. Ema
lahleni Housing Company had 21 
beneficiaries on their waiting list 
who were in dire need of wheel
chairs but could not afford them. 
13 wheelchairs were purchased 
with the proceeds of the Benefit 
Concert and the remaining ben
eficiaries were assisted through 
Emalahleni Housing Company’s 
“breadtags for Wheelchairs” 

project and generous donations 
from Life Cosmos Hospital and 
Highveld Mall.

Sunflower Day  
(15 September 2017)

The Sunflower Fund, a National 
Non-Profit Company (NPC), is 
an organisation in south Africa 
dedicated to creating aware
ness, educating the public and 
handling the registration pro
cess for people to join the south 
African bone Marrow registry 
(SABMR). The Sunflower Fund 
pays for the test cost of people 
joining the sAbMr. by increas
ing the number of donors 
listed on the national database, 
this offers hope to those diag
nosed with leukemia and other 
lifethreatening blood disorders. 
Higher numbers on the registry 
increase their chance of finding 
matching stem cell donors in or

We have a social 
responsibility, a 
constitutional 

opportunity and a 
moral obligation to 

help others 
– Jane Lewis

ouR CoMMUnitiEs
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the vein of celebrating shared 
culture rather than focusing on 
cultural divisions, an initiative 
by braai4Heritage calls upon all 
south Africans to celebrate their 
common roots by having a braai 
on Heritage Day with the idea 
of everybody gathering around 
one fire irrespective of politics, 
culture, race, etc. – just south 
Africans doing one thing togeth
er, and recognising that we are a 
fantastic nation.

Emalahleni Housing Company 
commemorated Heritage Day 
by hosting a modelling/beauty 
pageant on 23 september 2017. 
the objective of the event was 
to encourage social interaction 
between children and youth of 
different cultures, ages and gen
der. More than 105 participants 
from the age of 3 to 25 years took 
to the stage to showcase their 

modelling talent in their tradi
tional attire. the competition was 
divided into 10 categories ac
cording to age group and prizes, 
sashes and crowns were handed 
to the winners and runners up in 
each category.

16 days of activism for no 
violence against Women and 
children (25 november –  
10 december 2017)

the 16 Days of Activism for no 
Violence against Women and 
Children is an international 
awarenessraising campaign. it 
takes place every year from 25 
november (international Day 
for the Elimination of Violence 
against Women) to 10 Decem
ber (international Human rights 
Day). the period includes Uni
versal Children’s Day and World 
AiDs Day. south Africa adopted 
the campaign in 1998 as one 

of the intervention strategies 
towards creating a society free of 
violence. the campaign contin
ues to raise awareness amongst 
south Africans about the nega
tive impact of violence against 
women and children on all mem
bers of the community.

in support of this initiative, 
Emalahleni Housing Company 
donated clothing and shoes for 
children at two centers of safety 
in Emalahleni.

World aids day  
(01 december 2017)

World AiDs Day is held on the 
1st December each year and 
is an opportunity for people 
worldwide to unite in the fight 
against HiV, show their support 
for people living with HiV and to 
commemorate people who have 
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tenants in the 2018/19 financial 
year which will further improve 
this focus area.

 ■  registration of Likhaya Com
munity Development as a 
Public benefit organisation 
and nonProfit organisation.

 ■  Likhaya Community Devel
opment is registered as a 
nonprofit company. reg
istration as a public benefit 
organization is still in process 
and will be completed in the 
2018/19 financial year.

 ■  special focus on health and 
wellness; education; sport and 
environment.

Various programmes were rolled 
out that accommodated these 
focus areas, e.g. Emalahleni Hous
ing Company fun run/Walk 2017; 
take a Girl Child to Work Day; 
Emalahleni Housing Company 
youth Day soccer Challenge and 
recycling.

 ■  Balance the focus on ben-
eficiaries, i.e. tenants and 
the wider community; by 
improving the implemen-
tation of tenant-focused 
programmes.

 ■  Finalise the registration of 
Likhaya Community Devel-
opment as a Public Benefit 
Organisation.

 ■  Improvement in fundrais-
ing initiatives with a view to 
ensure long term financial 
sustainability.

died. World AiDs Day was the 
first ever global health day, held 
for the first time in 1988.

Emalahleni Housing Company 
commemorated World Aids Day 
by hosting a 10km fun run/Walk 
to encourage wellness and social 
interaction. Almost 150 people 
participated in the initiative and 
prizes were handed out to the 
winning athletes.

Breadtags for Wheelchairs / 
Back To School Project

the “breadtags for Wheelchairs” 
project is administered by the 
Polystyrene Packaging Council 
of south Africa (PsPC). bread
tags are made from high impact 
polystyrene (HiPs) and can be 
recycled into seedling trays, cor
nices, skirtings, outdoor furniture, 
coat hangers, poles and decking. 
PsPC has a network of buyers 
who have agreed to pay r8.00 
per kg for breadtags. PsPC coor
dinates the selling of the bread
tags to their network of buyers 
for recycling at r8.00p/kg. Ema
lahleni Housing Company is the 
registered breadtag collection 
point in the Emalahleni area.

Emalahleni Housing Company 
communicated the benefits of 
the initiative to staff, tenants, 
schools and the wider commu
nity to assist with the collection 
of bread tags and place them in 
identified areas for collection by 
Emalahleni Housing Company 
staff. Each child that was involved 
in the collection of breadtags 
was rewarded by Emalahleni 
Housing Company with a pair of 
school shoes for their efforts at 
the end of the year.

During the reporting period, 
281kg of breadtags were handed 
in. 548 pairs of school shoes were 
handed out to learners from 
Duvha Park Primary, Carissa 
Primary, Empucukweni second
ary, ilanga secondary, KwaGuqa 
Primary, Maloma Primary, nancy 
shiba Primary, nkonjane Primary, 
Zacheus Malaza secondary, st 
thomas Aquinas school and Kid
eos Creche. 2 wheelchairs were 
purchased and donated through 
the “breadtags for Wheelchairs” 
project.

overall contribution

During the reporting period, Em
alahleni Housing Company assist
ed more than 1000 beneficiaries 
with financial and non-financial 
contributions to the estimated 
value of R738 557.77.

community development 
focus areas 2017/18

 ■  Enhance community develop
ment programmes with a view 
to increase the impact of proj
ects in terms of beneficiaries 
and long term sustainability.

 ■  our contributions to the 
community together with our 
sponsors and partners was 
28.8% more than the previous 
financial year. 

 ■  Enhance engagement with 
tenants to ensure that their 
needs are identified and met.

 ■  regular meetings were held 
with our residential Commit
tees to ensure that our com
munity development initiatives 
are relevant for our tenants. 
During the strategic planning 
session held in february 2018, 
it was decided to place more 
emphasis on programmes for 

ouR CoMMUnitiEs

Community 
Development  
Focus Areas 2018/19
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PoPulaTion gRouP PERManEnT fiXEd TERM

Males females Totals Males females Totals

African 14 17 31 4 3 7

Coloureds 0 0 0 0 0 0

Indians 0 1 1 0 0 0

Whites 1 1 2 0 0 0

ToTalS 15 19 34 4 3 7

by race and genderEMPloYEE PRofilE

the Human resources department provides human 
resources leadership to ensure a highperforming and 
motivated Emalahleni Housing Company workforce. 
the department provides strategic direction and 
advice related to policies and procedures; employee 
training and development, recruitment, employee 
wellness, compensation, provident fund and other 
benefits.

Staff complement
As at 28 february 2018, Emalahleni Housing Com
pany had a total staff complement of 34 permanent 
employees and 7 fixed term employees. The total 
staff complement of 41 employees is made up of 
44% male and 56% female employees.

                    African                                     Coloured                                        Indians                                        White       

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2

0

Males                Females        

Employee Profile
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New appointments
The following appointments were made during the 
reporting time:

dESignaTion aPPoinTMEnT daTE

Company Secretary 01 May 2017

Community 
Development Officer

01 July 2017

Tenant Services  
Operator

01 July 2017

dESignaTion RESignaTion /  
TERMinaTion daTE

Landscaping &
Design Officer

08 December 2017

Tenant Services  
Operator

30 April 2017

Tenant Services  
Operator

30 April 2017

Resignations and terminations

Vision 2022 brought about a need to change the 
strategic direction for Emalahleni Housing Compa-
ny. This change in direction required the company 
to review its structure and operations. The follow-
ing structure was agreed upon in order to meet 
desired results:

Corporate Services Team

52

We need to first invest in 
people, then infrastructure  

- Bodour Al-Qasimi Chairperson, 
Sharjah Investment and 
Development Authority
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To keep everyone invested in your vision, you have to back up a little 
bit and really analyse who the different stakeholders are and what 

they individually respond to. - Alan Stern

Organizational Structure

Board of
Directors

Legal and 
Governance
(Company  

Secretary &  
Legal Services)

Chief Executive 
Officer

EXCO  
(Executive 

Management 
Committee)

Audit and Risk
Committee

PA to CEO

Human 
Resources and 
Remuneration 

Committee

Finance and
Investment
Committee

Nominations
Committee

Technical
Committee

Business & 
Community 

Development 
(GM: Business 
& Community 
Development)

Operations & 
Facilities (GM: 
Operations & 

Facilities)

Client Service
Managers x2

Property  
Maintenance  

Assistance

Client Services
Officers x4

Tenant Services
Operator (internal) x5

Landscaping &
Design Officer

General Assistants
x2

Corporate
Services

(CFO)

Accountant

hR & Admin Officer

ICt Officer

Finance Clerk

Receptionist

General Assistants
x3

Community
Development

Officers x2

Procurement 
& Logistic 

Officer
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High performance culture
Performance targets are aligned to departmental 
objectives which are in turn aligned to the strategic 
goals of the organization. Employee performance 
is appraised and assessed on a quarterly basis on a 
scale of 1 to 4. the appraisal process is conducted in 
twofold – employee performance assessment and 
identification of interventions to address barriers to 
performance. An overall performance score of 1 is an 
indication that the employee has not met the perfor
mance targets; 2 is an indication that the employee 
has met the performance targets; 3 is an indication 
that the employee has significantly exceeded the 
performance targets; and is an indication of excep
tional noteworthy contributions. Employee perfor
mance has been exemplary in the 2017/2018 finan
cial year with all employees achieving overall annual 
performance ratings of between 2.7 and 3.9. 

the table on the right is an indication of the levels 
of performance expressed as a percentage:

Employee Recognition
the annual awards ceremony was held on 2 December 2017 and the following employees and members of the 
management team were recognized for exceptional performance: 

RaTing
no. of  

EMPloYEES
PERcEnTagE

2.7 1 2.4%

3 6 14.63%

3.1 2 4.9%

3.2 1 2.4%

3.3 5 9.76%

3.4 6 14.63%

3.5 4 9.76%

3.6 8 19.51%

3.7 4 9.76%

3.8 3 7.32%

3.9 1 2.4%

4 0 0

naME of EMPloYEE dESignaTion aWaRd REcEivEd

Sibongile Skhosana Community 
Development Officer

Dept. Employee of the Year and Community 
Builder of the Year - Business & Community 
Development

Khethiwe Mkhomazi tenant services Officer 
Dept. Employee of the Year –  Operations 
and Facilities 
Employee of the Year – Overall Winner 

Sinazo Nkosi Finance Clerk Dept Employee of the Year -  
Corporate Services

R Chetty GM: Business & Community 
Development Manager of the Year

Susan Esterhuizen PA to CEO Most Breadtags Collected

HuMan rEsoUrCEs

the department of the year was awarded to the business and Community Development Department.



How we develop our people
Training and development is undertaken for the 
purpose of succession planning, addressing bar-
riers to performance and for employee personal 
development. Employees are provided with an op-
portunity to obtain or enhance their skills in order 

to ensure efficient and effective service delivery. 
Both long term training and short courses are job 
related, but in the event that employees require 
bridging courses before they undertake long term 
training specifically, e.g. Matric, the organization 
funds these courses accordingly. 

no. of STaff WHo REcEivEd TRaining

Black Coloured Indian White

M F M F M F M F

senior Officials 
and Managers

Basic Payrol Training 1

B. Compt. 1

Corporate Governance Conference 1

Exchange programme 1 1

Emotional Intelligence 1

Corporate Financial Management 1

Clerical and/or 
Administrative 
Workers

Postgraduate Diploma in 
Management Accounting 1

Accounting 1

Discretionary Grant Workshop 1

National Diploma: 
Human Resources 1 1

BCom in Marketing & Management 
Science 1

Public Relations 1

Office Administration 2

Certified Optic Fibre Installer 1

Payroll Basic Training 1

Principles of Business Management 1

Emotional Intelligence 2 1 1

First Aid 1 1

55

occuPaTional 
caTEgoRY

TRaining couRSE / 
long TERM STudY EnRolMEnT
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Succession Planning / Promotions
succession planning is conducted and monitored by relevant de
partmental managers in conjunction with the Corporate services 
Department. Departmental managers identify individuals who 
demonstrate superior performance and potential for future promo
tion based on their performance development reviews and relevant 
job competencies as defined in their current and next level job 
descriptions. these individuals are especially monitored to assess any 
training and development needs or any other jobrelated assistance 
in order to prepare them for the next level job whenever it becomes 
available. Departmental managers and Corporate services work 
together to support these individuals and, wherever possible, Em
alahleni Housing Company strives to follow the internal succession 
planning to promote from within existing employee ranks.

Occupational  
health and safety 
it is the policy of Emalahleni 
Housing Company to provide and 
maintain, as far as is reasonably 
practical, a working environment 
that is safe and without risk to the 
health of its employees.

the objectives of Emalahleni 
Housing Company’s occupation
al Health and Safety policy are:

 ■  to provide for the health and 
safety of persons at work and 
for the health and safety of 
persons in connection with 
the use of plant and machin
ery; and

 ■  to provide for the protection of 
persons other than persons at 
work against hazards to health 
and safety arising out of or in 
connection with the activities 
of persons at work;

 ■  Mr t.E. Motsoeneng is the 
company’s appointed Health 
and safety office

the following employees were pro
moted during the reporting period:

Human Resources Focus Areas 
2018/19

 ■ Facilitate technical skills training interventions.
 ■ Improve on employee wellness.
 ■ Promote code of conduct and ethical behaviour.

HuMan rEsoUrCEs

Provident Fund 
Membership of the company’s 
privately administered, defined 
contribution group provident 
fund is compulsory, subject to the 
rules of the provident fund. Ema
lahleni Housing Company is affili
ated to the old Mutual superfund 
through Universal Life brokers 
and contributes 7.69% towards 
employees’ provident fund. the 
employee contribution towards 
the provident fund is 6%.

2017/2018 Focus Areas
in our last year’s report we 
pledged to introduce an employ
ee wellness program and con
tinuously train our employees on 
new policies and below are some 
of the strides that we have taken 
towards our pledge

 ■ Employee Wellness Program 
Emalahleni Housing Company 
strives to promote health and 
wellbeing in the workplace. As a re
sult eighty percent of management 

and staff attended a bootcamp 
coordinated by a local and pro
fessional trainer, Mr themba Zulu 
where obstacle training, aerobics, 
boxing and tyre training exercises 
were done. We also participated in 
the famous Mpumalanga Greatest 
train race where in some walked 
and ran from 5 km to 32 km race. 

Our employees attended a finan
cial literacy workshop hosted by 
standard bank.

 ■ Training on policies  
 and procedures 
Emalahleni Housing Company 
continues to ensure that policies 
and procedures are relevant and 
according to best practice. 

An induction workshop for new 
employees was held on 19 May 
2017 which also served as a re
fresher course for existing em
ployees on the Human resources 
policies and procedures. 

naME Audrey 
Maphosa

dETailS of 
PRoMoTion

Human Resources 
Manager to Tenant  
Services Manager

PRoMoTion 
daTE 01 September 2017
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The 2018 financial year marks the end of the first 
financial year on the five-year cycle which ends in 
February 2022. The audited financial statements for 
the year ended 28 february 2018 were used as a basis 
for preparation of this message.

Financial Performance 
EHC recorded an amount of r38 225 050 as rental 
invoiced in the 2018 financial year, an increase of  
R3 277 154 (9.4%) from the previous financial year. 
the increase of 9.4% in rental invoiced was realized 
from 6% annual rental increase as well as the com
pletion and full occupation of 10 additional units at 
Panorama Heights. other income increased by  
R182 898 (30.1%) from the previous financial year 
which was mainly attributable to an increase in bad 
debt recovered of r327 261.

Operating profit for the year increased by R874 977 
(5.6%) from the previous year, mainly due to an in
crease in revenue which was more than an increase 
in operating expenses by r437 446. our operating 
expenses for the year ending 28 february 2018 were 
r29 710 492 compared to r26 870 784 at the year end 
28 february 2017.

the company’s investments generated r1 208 529 
more in interest during the year when compared to 
the previous financial year. Investment properties 
were devalued with an amount of r49 955 208 and 
there was a gain on revaluation of the head office 
property as a result of a property valuation exercise 
conducted during the year.   

As a result of the fair value adjustment on investment 
properties, the organisation had a loss of r32 210 953 for 
the financial year as compared to the surplus of R15 
654 004 for 2017.

Financial Position
total assets were r249 758 287 as of 28 february 2018, 
a decrease of r33 824 805 (11.9%) from the previous 
financial year. Non-current assets decreased by  
r38 069 993 (13.7%) when compared to the previous 
financial year as a result of the fair value adjustment 
on investment property.  Current assets increased by 

r4 245 188 (8%) which was mainly attributable to an 
increase in cash and cash equivalents.

total liabilities decreased from r103 380 362 in 2017 to 
r101 664 030 in 2018, which was mainly due to the net 
decrease of r2 876 885 in government grant (refer 
to note 8 of the financial statements). the balance 
of finance lease obligations amounted to R212 917 at 
the end of the 2018 financial year, this relates to the 
only interestbearing borrowing obligation that the 
organisation has. there was a decrease in equity to 
r148 094 257 compared to r180 202 730 in 2017, due 
to the loss in the 2018 financial year.

Cash Flow 
net cash from operating activities for the year ended 
28 february 2018 were r19 883 020, an improvement 
of R2 778 844 compared to the previous financial 
year, mainly due to improved working capital. net 
cash from investing activities for the year were  
r12 292 780, a decline of r1 538 378 compared to  
the previous financial year. 

Net cash from financing activities declined from 
R9 461 252 in the 2017 financial year to R2 977 457 in 
the current financial year. This is mainly attributable 
to an amount of r4 166 715 received as a government 
grant and no utilization of the infrastructure mainte
nance reserve during the year.

The sum of cash flows from operating activities, cash 
from investing activities and cash from financing 
activities for the year ended 28 february 2018 totaled 
cash inflows of R4 612 783, compared to cash outflows 
of r6 188 234 for the year ended 28 february 2017 an 
increase of r10 801 017 year on year. 

Liquidity Analysis
The company’s liquidity ratio moved from 0.35:1 in the 
previous financial year to 0.58:1 in the 2018 financial 
year due to the increase in current assets in 2018. 

MESSagE froM  
tHE Cfo 2018

Ms. Zanele adelaide  
Shongwe



59

resilience

financES
oUr



60
Emalahleni Housing Company NPC – (Reg.no. 2002/015812/08)
Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2018 

general information

Country of incorporation and domicile  south Africa

Nature of business and principal activities  investment in and management of residential property 
 in terms of a government mandate

Directors  rL Chauke (Chairperson)
 Db Khoza (Deputy Chairperson)
 MG Xaba (CEo)
 Cb Dlamini (Active)
 ZA shongwe (Cfo)
 sn Motloung (Active)
 Hn Zitha (Active)
 sJ sekgobela          Appointed 1 December 2017
 Dt Makoena           Appointed 1 March 2018

Business address  7 beatty Avenue
 Emalahleni
 1035

Bankers  standard bank
 nedbank

Auditors  PricewaterhouseCoopers inc.
 Chartered Accountants (s.A)
 registered Auditor

Secretary  r tsokodayi

Company registration number  2002/015812/08

Level of assurance  These financial statements have been audited in compliance
 with the applicable requirements of the Companies Act 71  
 of 2008.

Preparer  The financial statements were independently compiled by:
 M Lamprecht
 Chartered Accountant (s.A)

Issued  15 november 2018
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directors’ Responsibilities and approval

the directors are required by the Companies Act 71 of 
2008, to maintain adequate accounting records and are 
responsible for the content and integrity of the financial 
statements and related financial information included 
in this report. it is their responsibility to ensure that the 
financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of 
the company as at the end of the financial year and the 
results of its operations and cash flows for the period 
then ended, in conformity with the international finan
cial reporting standard for small and Mediumsized 
Entities. the external auditors are engaged to express 
an independent opinion on the financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance 
with the international financial reporting standard for 
small and Mediumsized Entities and are based upon 
appropriate accounting policies consistently applied 
and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements 
and estimates.

the directors acknowledge that they are ultimately 
responsible for the system of internal financial control 
established by the company and place considerable 
importance on maintaining a strong control environ
ment. to enable the directors to meet these responsi
bilities, the board of directors sets standards for internal 
control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in 
a cost effective manner. the standards include the 
proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly de
fined framework, effective accounting procedures and 

adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable 
level of risk. these controls are monitored through
out the company and all employees are required to 
maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the 
company’s business is conducted in a manner that in 
all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. the 
focus of risk management in the company is on identi
fying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known 
forms of risk across the company. While operating risk 
cannot be fully eliminated, the company endeavours to 
minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, 
controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied 
and managed within predetermined procedures and 
constraints.

the directors are of the opinion, based on the informa
tion and explanations given by management, that the 
system of internal control provides reasonable assur
ance that the financial records may be relied on for the 
preparation of the financial statements. However, any 
system of internal financial control can provide only rea
sonable, and not absolute, assurance against material 
misstatement or loss.

The directors have reviewed the company’s cash flow 
forecast for the year to 28 february 2019 and, in the 
light of this review and the current financial position, 
They are satisfied that the company has or has access 
to adequate resources to continue in operational exis
tence for the foreseeable future.

Approval of financial statements
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RL Chauke (Chairperson)                                                                  MG Xaba (CEO)

ZA Shongwe (CFO)            
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directors’ Report

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the financial statements of Emalahleni Housing Company 
nPC for the year ended 28 february 2018.

1. Review of financial results and activities
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard for 
small and Mediumsized Entities and the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008. the accounting policies 
have been applied consistently compared to the prior year.

the company recorded a loss for the year ended 28 february 2018 of r(32 210 953). this was mainly due to the decrease 
in the value of the Uthingo Park property emanating from the disposal of a portion of land by Emalahleni Local Munici
pality, as well as an overall decrease in the values of investment properties. refer to note 4 for further details.

2. directors
the directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:
Directors  Designation  Changes
rL Chauke (Chairperson)  nonexecutive  independent
Db Khoza (Deputy Chairperson) nonexecutive  independent
MG Xaba (CEo)  Executive
Cb Dlamini (Active)  nonexecutive  independent
ZA shongwe (Cfo)  Executive
sn Motloung (Active)  nonexecutive  independent
Hn Zitha (Active)  nonexecutive  independent
sJ sekgobela  nonexecutive  independent Appointed friday, 01 December 2017
Dt Makoena  nonexecutive  independent Appointed friday, 01 March 2018

3. Events after the reporting period
the directors are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this
report, other than those described in note 19.

4. going concern
The directors believe that the company has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable 
future and accordingly the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors have 
satisfied themselves that the company is in a sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing 
facilities to meet its foreseeable cash requirements. the directors are not aware of any new material changes that may 
adversely impact the company. the directors are also not aware of any material noncompliance with statutory or regu
latory requirements or of any pending changes to legislation which may affect the company.

5. Secretary
the company secretary is r tsokodayi.
Business address
7 beatty Avenue
Emalahleni
1035

6. Terms of appointment of the auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. were appointed as the company’s auditors for 2018. The appointed audit firm for
2019 will be announced at the Annual General Meeting.
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independent auditor’s Report to EHc

indEPEndEnT audiToR’S REPoRT

to the Directors of Emalahleni Housing Company nPC 

ouR oPinion

In our opinion In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial posi
tion of Emalahleni Housing Company NPC (the Company) as at 28 February 2018, and its financial performance 
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standard for 
small and Mediumsized Entities and the requirements of the Companies Act of south Africa.

What we have audited 
Emalahleni Housing Company NPC’s financial statements set out on pages 67 to 82 comprise:

 ■ the statement of financial position as at 28 february 2018;
 ■ the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
 ■ the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
 ■ the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
 ■ the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies. 

BaSiS foR oPinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with international standards on Auditing (isAs). our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial state
ments section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

independence 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the independent regulatory board for Auditors Code 
of Professional Conduct for registered Auditors (irbA Code) and other independence requirements applicable 
to performing audits of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the irbA Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing au
dits in south Africa. the irbA Code is consistent with the international Ethics standards board for Accountants 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A and b).

oTHER infoRMaTion

the directors are responsible for the other information. the other information comprises the information includ
ed in the Directors’ report as required by the Companies Act of south Africa. other information does not include 
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cov
er the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information iden
tified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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notes to the financial Statements
65

if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other infor
mation, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPonSiBiliTiES of THE diREcToRS foR THE financial STaTEMEnTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with the international financial reporting standard for small and Mediumsized Entities and the requirements 
of the Companies Act of south Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to contin
ue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have 
no realistic alternative but to do so.

audiToR’S RESPonSiBiliTiES foR THE audiT of THE financial STaTEMEnTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with isAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with isAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scep
ticism throughout the audit. We also:

 ■  identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. the risk of not detecting a material mis
statement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 ■  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effective
ness of the Company’s internal control.

 ■  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting esti
mates and related disclosures made by the directors.

 ■  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi
tions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

 ■  if we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclo
sures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a man
ner that achieves fair presentation.

Emalahleni Housing Company NPC – (Reg.no. 2002/015812/08)
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independent auditor’s Report to EHc
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independent auditor’s Report to EHc

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers inc. 
Director: Stephan Eicker 
registered Auditor 
eMalahleni

20 November 2018



Note(s)
 2018 

R
2017

R

assets

noncurrent assets

Property, plant and equipment 5 13 397 764 7 797 404

investment property at fair value 4 213 675 313 261 125 842

intangible assets 6 165 803 22 320

Other financial assets 7 11 638 484 9 369 791

Deposits paid 9 1 368 000 -

240 245 364 278 315 357

current assets

trade and other receivables 2 1  162 017 1 529 615

Cash and cash equivalents 3 8 350 906 3 738 120

9 512 923 5 267 735

Total assets 249 758 287 283 583 092

Equity and liabilities

Equity

reserves 4 020 302 2 477 822

retained income 144 073 955 177 724 908

148 094 257 180 202 730

liabilities

noncurrent liabilities

finance lease liabilities 10 80 186 204 377

Government Grant 8 85 100 132 88 256 449

85 180 318 88 460 826

current liabilities

trade and other payables 11 9 282 591 8 021 467

finance lease liabilities 10 132 731 109 112

Government Grant 8 7 068 390  6 788 957

16 483 712 14 919 536

Total liabilities 101 664 030 103 380 362

Total Equity and liabilities 249 758 287 283 583 092
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Statement of financial Position as at 28 february 2018
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Statement of comprehensive income

note(s)  2018 
R

2017
R

revenue 13 45 268 641 41 736 854

other income 789 569 606 671

operating expenses (refer to page 83) (29 710 492) (26 870 784)

Operating profit 14 16 347 718 15 472 741

investment revenue 16 1 509 986 229 457

fair value adjustments 4 (49 955 208) -

finance costs (113 449) (48 194)

(Loss) profit for the year (32 210 953) 15 654 004

other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Gains (losses) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 102 480 -

other comprehensive income for the year 17 102 480 

other comprehensive income 17 102 480 -

Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year (32 108 473) 15 654 004
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Statement of changes in Equity

Revaluation
Reserve 

R

Infrastructure
maintenance

reserve
R

Total
Reserves 

R

 Retained
income 

R

Total
equity

R

Balance at 01 March 2016  3 974 189 3 974 189 163 150 904 167 125 093

Profit for the year - - - 15 654 004 15 654 004

Other comprehensive income - - - - -

Total comprehensive income for 
the year

   15 654 004 15 654 004

Transfer between reserves - 1 080 000 1 080 000 (1 080 000) -

Utilisation of reserve - (2 576 367) (2 576 367) - (2 576 367)

Total changes  (1 496 367) (1 496 367) (1 080 000) (2 576 367)

Balance at 01 March 2017  2 477 822 2 477 822 177 724 908 180 202 730

Loss for the year - - - (32 210 953) (32 210 953)

Other comprehensive income 102 480 - 102 480 - 102 480

Total comprehensive loss for  
the year

102 480  102 480 (32 210 953) (32 108 473)

Transfer between reserves -  1 440 000  1 440 000 (1 440 000) 

Total changes -  1 440 000  1 440 000 (1 440 000) -

Balance at 28 february 2018 102 480 3 917 822 4 020 302 144 073 955 148 094 257

Note(s) 17 12 17
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Statement of cash flows

Note(s)
 2018 

R
2017

R

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 18 18 486 483 16 922 913

Interest income 1 509 986 229 457

Finance costs (113 449) (48 194)

net cash from operating activities 19 883 020 17 104 176

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 5 (5 953 594) (441 082)

Purchase of investment property at fair value 4 (2 504 680) (11 988 134)

Purchase of other intangible assets 6 (199 387) (19 397)

Sale of other intangible assets 6 1 574 

Purchase of financial assets (2 268 693) (1 382 545)

Deposits paid (1 368 000) -

net cash from investing activities (12 292 780) (13 831 158)

Cash flows from financing activities

Movement in government grant (2 876 885) (6 788 957)

Finance lease payments (100 572) (95 928)

Movement in reserves - (2 576 367)

Net cash from financing activities (2 977 457) (9 461 252)

net increase in cash and cash equivalents for the year 4 612 783 (6 188 234)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3 738 120 9 926 355

cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 3 8 350 903 3 738 121

1. Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with the International
financial reporting standard for small and Mediumsized Entities, and the Companies Act 71 of 2008. the
financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for biological assets at fair value 
less point of sale costs, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. they are presented in 
south African rands.

these accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1 investment property
investment property is land and buildings held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than 
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary 
course of business.

investment property is initially measured at cost and subsequently at fair value with changes in fair value recognised

accounting Policies



71
Emalahleni Housing Company NPC – (Reg.no. 2002/015812/08)
Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2018 

accounting Policies

in profit or loss. If the fair value of investment property cannot be measured reliably without undue cost or effort, 
then it is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment.

the cost of investment property comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs incurred to bring the 
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an investment property and costs incurred subse
quently to add to, replace part of, or service it. if a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an 
item of investment property, the carrying amount of the replaced item is derecognised.

the fair value is determined annually by an external valuator derived from current market prices of comparable 
real estate.

1.2 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the company holds for its own use or for rental to oth
ers and which are expected to be used for more than one period.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

Cost includes costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs
incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. if a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services, additions to or replacements of parts of property, plant 
and equipment are capitalised if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure 
will flow to the company and the cost can be measured reliably. Day to day servicing costs are included in profit 
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depre
ciation and any accumulated impairment losses, except for land and buildings which are stated at revalued 
amounts. the revalued amount is the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses.

Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from 
that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, the gross carrying amount is adjusted consistently 
with the carrying amount. the accumulated depreciation at that date is adjusted to equal the difference be
tween the gross carrying amount and the net revalued carrying amount.

Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity. The increase is recognised in profit or loss to the 
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in other comprehensive in
come to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. Any remain
ing decrease in excess of such credit is recognised in profit or loss in the current year.

The revaluation surplus related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to re
tained income when the asset is derecognised.
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accounting Policies

Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by management. Depreciation 
is charged to write off the asset’s carrying amount over its estimated useful life to its estimated residual value, using a 
method that best reflects the pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the company.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

When indicators are present that the useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment 
have changed since the most recent annual reporting date, they are reassessed. Any changes are accounted for 
prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

impairment tests are performed on property, plant and equipment when there is an indicator that they may 
be impaired. When the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is assessed to be higher 
than the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment loss, equal to the excess of the carrying amount over 
the recoverable amount, is recognised immediately in profit or loss for assets which are not revalued. In the case 
of revalued assets, the impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the 
revaluation surplus in equity against any existing credit relating to the same asset. Any remaining impairment 
loss is recognised in profit or loss. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of 
property, plant and equipment, determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the 
carrying amount of the item, is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised.

1.3 intangible assets

intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and subsequently at cost less accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses.

research and development costs are recognised as an expense in the period incurred.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, as follows:

in cases where management is unable to make a reliable estimate of the useful life of an intangible asset, its 
best estimate is applied, limited to 10 years.

the residual value, amortisation period and amortisation method for intangible assets are reassessed when 

item depreciation method average useful life

Machinery and equipment straight line 6 years

Furniture and fittings straight line 6 years

Motor vehicles straight line 3 years

Office equipment straight line 6 years

Computer equipment straight line 3 years

item useful life

Computer software 3 years

72

1.2 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
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accounting Policies

there is an indication that there is a change from the previous estimate.

1.4 financial instruments

financial instruments at amortised cost
these include loans, trade receivables and trade payables. those debt instruments which meet the criteria in 
section 11.8(b) of the standard, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest meth
od. Debt instruments which are classified as current assets or current liabilities are measured at the undiscount
ed amount of the cash expected to be received or paid, unless the arrangement effectively constitutes a financ
ing transaction.

At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of assets held in this category are reviewed to determine whether 
there is any objective evidence of impairment. if there is objective evidence, the recoverable amount is estimated 
and compared with the carrying amount. if the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is 
reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

financial instruments at cost 
Equity instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair value cannot otherwise be measured reliably 
without undue cost or effort are measured at cost less impairment.

financial instruments at fair value
All other financial instruments, including equity instruments that are publicly traded or whose fair value can 
otherwise be measured reliably, without undue cost or effort, are measured at fair value through profit and loss.

if a reliable measure of fair value is no longer available without undue cost or effort, then the fair value at the last 
date that such a reliable measure was available is treated as the cost of the instrument. the instrument is then 
measured at cost less impairment until management are able to measure fair value without undue cost or effort.

1.5 leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership 
to the lessee. All other leases are operating leases.

operating leases  lessor
Operating lease income is recognised as an income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless:

 ■  another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the benefit from the leased asset, even if 
the receipt of payments is not on that basis, or

 ■  the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation (based on published in
dexes or statistics) to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

operating leases – lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless:

 ■  another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the benefit from the leased asset, even if 
the payments are not on that basis, or

 ■  the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation (based on published in
dexes or statistics) to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.
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accounting Policies

1.6 impairment of assets

the company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and equipment 
or intangible assets or goodwill may be impaired.

if there is any such indication, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of related assets) is estimat
ed and compared with its carrying amount. if the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is 
reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

if an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is in
creased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been 
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or group of assets) in prior years. A reversal of 
impairment is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

1.7 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the company has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past 
event; it is probable that the company will be required to transfer economic benefits in settlement; and the 
amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the amount expected to be required to settle the obligation 
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the obligation. the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense. 
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

1.8 government grants

Grants that do not impose specified future performance conditions are recognised in income when the grant 
proceeds are receivable.

Grants that impose specified future performance conditions are recognised in income only when the perfor
mance conditions are met.

Grants received before the revenue recognition criteria are satisfied are recognised as a liability.

Grants are measured at the fair value of the asset received or receivable.

1.9 Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that the company has transferred the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of goods to the buyer, or has rendered services under an agreement provided the amount of rev
enue can be measured reliably and it is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will 
flow to the company. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, exclud
ing sales taxes and discounts.

Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.

1.10 Borrowing costs

borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.



 2018 
R

2017
R

2. Trade and other receivables

trade receivables 1 143 311  2 926 559

Prepayments 259 014 249 650

Provision for doubtful debt (240 308) (1 646 594)

1 162 017 1 529 615

3. cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 134 920

bank balances 8 350 772 3 737 200

8 350 906 3 738 120

4. investment property at fair value 

Reconciliation of investment property at fair value  2018

opening
balance additions fair value

adjustments Total

investment property 261 125 842 2 504 680 (49 955 209) 213 675 313

Reconciliation of investment property at fair value  2017

opening
balance additions Total

investment property 249 137 708 11 988 134 261 125 842
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 2018 

R
2017

R

4. investment property at fair value (continued)

details of property

uthingo Park

Erf 489 to 1128

- Opening Balance 195 849 791 193 029 970

- Additions 1 306 149 2 819 821

- Fair value adjustment (37 755 940) -

159 400 000 195 849 791

Panorama Heights
1 Maria Street, Highveld Park

- Opening balance 17 953 960 17 004 309

- Additions 1 195 195 949 651

- Fair value adjustment (9 449 155) -

9 700 000 17 953 960

Klarinet Ext 6
Erf 6991 and 6996, Klarinet Ext 6

- Opening balance 40 002 738 36 297 599

- Additions - 3 705 139

- Fair value adjustment (2 902 738) -

37 100 000 40 002 738

Weaver’s nest
Beatty Avenue, eMalahleni

- Opening balance 2 906 630 2 805 830

- Additions - 100 800

- Fair value adjustment 275 370 -

3 182 000 2 906 630

other
3 and 21 Beatty Avenue, Eric Liberty, eMalahleni

- Opening balance 4 412 723 
- Additions 3 336 4 412 723

- Fair value adjustment (122 746) -

4 293 313 4 412 723
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the investment property consists of residential property.

details of valuation 
the effective date of the revaluations was Monday, 11 June 2018. revaluations were performed by an independent 
valuer, Mr Dave furness, Professional Associate Valuer of Dave furness Properties. Dave furness is not connected to the 
company and has recent experience in the location and category of the investment property at fair value being valued.

The valuation was based on discounted future cashflows from rentals received.



 
 2018

R
2017

R

5. Property, plant and equipment

2018 2017

 cost or 
revaluation

accumulated 
depreciation

carrying 
value

cost or 
revaluation

accumulated 
depreciation

carrying 
value

land and buildings (offices) 6 592 950 - 6 592 950 6 471 750 –  6 471 750

Machinery equipment 6 653 295 (578 025) 6 075 270 837 468 (500 561) 336 907

Furniture and fixtures 1 000 154 (647 786)  352 368 1 238 048 (733 118) 504 930

Motor vehicles 1 659 907 (1 453 766) 206 141 1 659 907 (1 323 264) 336 643

Office equipment 104 433 (38 519) 65 914 111 680 (64 315) 47 365

Computer equipment 280 903 (175 782) 105 121 596 145 (496 336) 99 809

Total 16 291 642 (2 893 878) 13 397 764 10 914 998 (3 117 594) 7 797 404

Reconcilliation of property, plant and equipment – 2018

opening
balance additions Revaluations depreciation closing 

balance

land and buildings (offices) 6 471 750 18 720 102 480 - 6 592 950

Machinery equipment 336 907 5 815 827 - (77 464) 6 075 270

Furniture and fixtures 504 930 12 700 - (165 262) 352 368

Motor vehicles 336 643 - - (130 502) 206 141

Office equipment 47 365 33 115 - (14 566) 65 914

Computer equipment  99 809  73 232 - (67 920) 105 121

7 797 404 5 953 594 102 480 (455 714) 13 197 764

Reconcilliation of property, plant and equipment – 2017

opening 
balance additions depreciation closing 

balance

land and buildings (offices) 6 471 750 – – 6 471 750

Machinery equipment 418 107 4 000 (85 200) 336 907

Furniture and fixtures 671 309 – (166 379) 504 930

Motor vehicles 293 948 363 540 (320 845) 336 643

Office equipment 47 934 11 046 (11 615) 47 365

Computer equipment  96 504 62 496 (59 191) 99 809

7 999 552 441 082 (643 230) 7 797 404
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Revaluations 
the company’s land and buildings are stated at revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less 
any subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. revaluations are performed every 3 
years and in intervening years if the carrying amount of the land and buildings difers materially from their fair value.

the fair value measurements as of Monday, 11 June 2018 were performed by Mr Dave furness, Professional Associate 
Valuer of Dave Furness Properties. Mr Dave Furness has the appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the fair 
value measurement of properties in the relevant locations.
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7. Other financial assets

at fair value

Liberty investment 11 638 484 9 369 791

noncurrent assets
At fair value 11 638 484 9 369 791

the fair values of listed or quoted investments are based on the quoted market price at reporting period date.

8. government grant

Cumulative grants received 180 404 593 176 237 878

Cumulative grants recognised (81 192 472) (74 403 515)

99 212 121 101 834 363

Grant recognised as income during the year (7 043 600) (6 788 957)

Balance at end of the year 92 168 521 95 045 406

noncurrent liabilities 85 100 132 88 256 449

Current liabilities 7 068 389 6 788 957

92 168 521 95 045 406

9. deposits paid
Midnight Masquerade (Pty) Ltd 1 368 000 -

 
 2018

R
2017

R

6. intangible assets

2018 2017

cost accumulated
amortisation

carrying 
value cost accumulated

amortisation
carrying 

value

Computer software 416 159 (250 356) 165 803 386 910 (364 590) 22 320

Reconciliation of intangible assets  2018

opening
balance additions disposals amortisation closing

balance

Computer software 22 320 199 387 (1 574) (54 330) 165 803

Reconciliation of intangible assets  2017

opening
balance additions amortisation closing

balance
Computer software 10 398 19 397 (7 475) 22 320

this deposit relates to a payment made in respect of a property located in Mbombela. At the date of this report, EHC 
is no longer of the intention to conclude the sale of the property, and the deposit is repayable to EHC. Management 
intends to recover the full amount of the deposit paid, however there is a possibility that the full deposit may not be re
covered and may be impaired in the following financial year.
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11. Trade and other payables
trade payables 1 635 937 543 928

Amounts received in advance 1 051 754 1 136 655

Provisions 1 329 751 1 251 904

Deposits received 5 265 149 5 088 980

9 282 591 8 021 467

12. infrastructure maintenance reserve

opening balance 2 477 822  3 974 189

Current year provision 1 440 000 1 080 000
Utilised during the year - (2 576 367)

3 917 822 2 477 822

During the year, an amount of R0 (2017: R2 576 367) was spent against the reserve.

Uthingo Park - 2 576 367

Consulting fees - -

Architects’ fees - -

other project costs - -

Total - 2 576 367

13. Revenue

rental income 38 225 050 34 947 896

Long term government grant recognised 7 043 591 6 788 958

45 268 641 41 736 854

14. Operating profit

Operating profit for the year is stated after accounting for the following:

Amortisation on intangible assets 54 330 7 475

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 455 714 643 230

Employee costs 11 561 124 10 783 137

10. finance lease liabilities
Minimum lease payments which fall due
 within one year 152 074 143 516

- in second to fifth year inclusive 83 704 227 238

235 778 370 754

Less: future finance charges (22 861) (57 265)

Present value of minimum lease payments 212 917 313 489

noncurrent liabilities 80 186 204 377

Current liabilities 132 731 109 112

212 917 313 489

 2018 
R

2017
R

The finance lease relates to a motor vehicle lease agreement which was entered into in 2013. After expiration of the lease 
term ownership of the asset is transferred to the company. The company’s obligations under finance lease are secured 
by the lessor’s charge over the leased asset. refer to note 5.
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17. other comprehensive income

components of other comprehensive income  2018

Gross
movement Adjustments Net

movement

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
gains (losses) on revaluation of  
property, plant and equipment
Gains (losses) on revaluations arising during the year 102 480 - 102 480

Total items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 102 480  102 480

19. contingencies

Possible liability to Emalahleni local Municipality

the Emalahleni Local Municpality (ELM) billed Emalahleni Housing Company (EHC) an amount of r7 431 557 for
unpaid electricity services.

EHC disputed this amount on the basis that tenants at Uthingo Park residential Complex are using prepaid me
ters. Each meter is registered and compantible with the Municipality’s prepaid meter system. EHC has been con

15. Employee cost
Employee costs
basic 8 280 957 7 671 298

Medical aid  company contributions 1 731 929 1 699 245

Uif 172 040 161 265

Workman’s compensation 44 635 30 626

staff rent paid 29 217 -

bonuses 695 801 789 677

other short term costs 606 545 431 026

11 561 124 10 783 137
16. investment revenue
interest revenue
interest received 1 509 986 229 457

 2018 
R

2017
R

18. cash generated from operations

(Loss) profit before taxation (32 210 953)  15 654 004

adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 510 044 650 705

interest received (1 509 986) (229 457)

finance costs 113 449 48 194

fair value adjustments 49 955 208 -

changes in working capital:

trade and other receivables 367 597 630 421

trade and other payables 1 261 124 169 046

18 486 483 16 922 913
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 2018 

R
2017

R

sistent in raising concerns to ELM reagrding the disputed amount and requested a reconciliation to be performed
reconciling the amount of bulk consumption with the prepaid purchases. to date this has not materialised.

in accordance with the MoU reached between ELM and EHC, EHC will be taking over the responsibility of the
supply of electricity to the tenants of Uthingo Park residential Complex. As such, ELM will supply a voltage at 22KV
and EHC will be supplying consumers at the supply voltage of 423V/321V at a promulgated tariff. the sale of
electricity to consumers will be done by means of the prepaid electricity metering vending process.

to this end, an audit was conducted by rDV Electrical Engineers in order to ascertain the extent of the work to be
done in preparation for the implementation of the MOU. The audit report findings recommended the installation of
new kiosk boxes that are secured and cannot be tampered with. During february 2018, AVUKE technology
services completed the installation of the new kiosk boxes which cost EHC r5 784 133, and is presented in note 5
as additions to machinery equipment under Property, plant and equipment. these kiosk boxes together with the
pre-paid electricity meters will be fully operational during the 2019 financial year resulting in the MOU to be realised.

the EHC board is of the view that EHC is not liable for the unpaid electricity services and therefore this remains
under dispute with ELM.

litigation regarding uthingo Park 
in terms of the social Housing Policies and the President’s Job summit Lead Project (“PJsLP”), the Emalahleni 
Housing Company (EHC) was incorporated to take ownership, administer and manage the units at Uthingo Park. 
before its incorporation, however, the project to build the 5000 houses was approved by national Government, then 
Department of Housing, and Anchorprops 31 (Pty) Ltd t/a Witbank Housing Corporation (WHC) was appointed as 
the developer.

the Emalahleni Local Municipality (ELM), in turn, entered into an agreement with WHC called the “Land Availability 
Agreement” (LAA) in terms of which ELM’s land was made available to WHC for the latter to build the 5000 units 
envisaged by PJsLP. However, WHC built only 1131 units of which 211 were incomplete. ELM then sought to cancel 
the LAA by giving WHC notice of cancellation.

WHC launched an application in the north Gauteng High Court in Pretoria under case number 76256/2009, in  
which it sought a declaratory order holding ELM bound to the terms of the LAA, directing ELM to sign and deliver to 
it special powers of attorney to enable WHC to take transfer and sell 250 units in Uthingo Park. furthermore WHC 
seeked to obtain further powers of attorney for the transfer of the rest of the units to WHC.

EHC launched a case in order to obtain an interim interdict in order to prevent the transfer of the Uthingo Park 
properties to WHC. EHC has also launched a case with the Mpumalanga High Court in order to have the settlement 
agreement as well as the LAA be reviewed. the abovementioned cases are due for hearings in 2019.

the possible exposure to legal costs is estimated at r5m.
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 2018 
R

2017
R

20. directors’ remuneration

Executive

2018 Emoluments other
benefits* Total

MG Xaba (Active) 1 554 001 18 000  1 572 001

ZA shongwe (Active) 632 623 18 000 650 623

2 186 624 36 000 2 222 624

2017

Emoluments other
benefits* Total

MG Xaba (Active) 1 356 226 15 600 1 371 826

ZA shongwe (Active) 554 833 15 600 570 433

1 911 059 31 200 1 942 259

* Other benefits comprise housing allowance.

nonexecutive

2018 directors’
fees Total

rL Chauke (Chairperson) 171 877 171 877

Db Khoza (Deputy Chairperson) 113 531 113 531

Cb Dlamini (Active) 108 631 108 631

sn Motloung (Active) 128 796 128 796 
sJ sekgobela (Active) 22 469 22 469

545 304 545 304

2017

directors’
fees Total

rL Chauke (Chairperson) 175 162 175 162

Db Khoza (Deputy Chairperson) 130 902 130 902

fV Mlombo (resigned 20 Aug 2016) 87 614 87 614

Cb Dlamini (Active) 112 921 112 921

sn Motloung (Active) 102 515 102 515

609 114 609 114
21. Related parties

related parties relationship
Limelight Property investments (Pty) Ltd subsidiary
Likhaya Community Development nPC subsidiary
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 Note(s)
 2018 

R
2017

R

Revenue

rental received 38 225 050  34 947 896

other grants 7 043 591 6 788 958

13 45 268 641 41 736 854

other income

Administration fees received 99 961 206 624

Deposits forfeited 34 934 27 102

insurance received - (2 000)

bad debts recovered 464 654 137 393

Application fees 142 790 169 140

other income 47 230 68 412

interest received 16 1 509 986 229 457

2 299 555 836 128

Expenses (Refer to page 84) (29 710 492) (26 870 784)

Operating profit 14 17 857 704 15 702 198

finance costs (113 449) (48 194)

fair value adjustments (49 955 208) -

(50 068 657) (48 194)

(Loss) profit for the year (32 210 953) 15 654 004

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the financial statements and is unaudited



note(s)  2018 
R

2017
R

operating expenses

AGM expenses 145 180  158 517

Accoutning fees - 15 313

Advertising 571 189 600 475

Assets below r2000 33 226 11 876

Auditors remuneration 237 369 144 780

bad debts 195 330 206 407

bank charges 516 243 419 184

Computer expenses 276 537 188 764

Consulting fees 482 163 450 426

Consumables 149 138 127 105

Depreciation 510 044 650 705

Directors remuneration 2 317 637 2 265 498

Electricity and water 870 661 295 935

Employee costs 11 561 124 10 783 137

Entertainment 574 764 372 682

insurance 482 513 437 417

Legal expenses 928 545  368 041

Motor vehicle expenses 159 778 88 334

Petrol and oil 7 714 49 474

Postage 1 368 1 368

Printing and stationery 61 538 64 368

Protective clothing 48 958 47 764

rental  equipment 87 301 85 109

rental  premises 138 284 116 472

repairs and maintenance 3 857 181 3 484 542

secretarial fees 7 000  3 000

security 4 527 348 4 512 577

subscriptions 132 843 106 523

telephone and fax 451 306 429 091

training 120 672 197 269

travel  local 257 538 188 631

29 710 492 26 870 784
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The supplementary information presented does not form part of the financial statements and is unaudited



Contact Details:

Tel.
Fax.
Fax 2 email.

Address.

013 690 1372
013 690 1604
086 659 331

7 Beatty Avenue,
Witbank, Emalahleni,
1035


